1CK

OXFORDSHIRE
) COUNTY COUNCIL

Public Document P

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for
Environment (including Transport)

Thursday, 13 October 2016 at 10.00 am
Committee Rooms 1 & 2, County Hall, New Road, Oxford

Items for Decision

The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed
overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached. Decisions taken
will become effective at the end of the working day on Friday 21 October 2016

unless called in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee.

Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council.

These proceedings are open to the public

/7€ Cls

Peter G. Clark
County Director October 2016

Contact Officer: Graham Warrington
Tel: 07393 001211, E-Mail:
graham.warrington@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Note: Date of next meeting: 24 November 2016

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible
before the meeting.




Page 2

Items for Decision

Declarations of Interest
Questions from County Councillors

Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two
working days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the
Cabinet Member’s delegated powers.

The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one
meeting is limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary
qguestion at the meeting) and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in
total. As with questions at Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the
end of this item will receive a written response.

Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and
will be the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such
other councillor or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not
be the subject of further debate at this meeting. Questions received after the
despatch of the agenda, but before the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of
Addenda circulated at the meeting, together with any written response which is
available at that time.

Petitions and Public Address

Proposed Toucan Crossing - A423 Southam Road, Banbury (Pages
1-8)

Forward Plan Ref: 2016/064
Contact: Owen Jenkins, Service Manager for Highways, Transport & Waste Tel:
(01865) 323304

Report by Interim Deputy Director for Environment & Economy — Commercial
(CMDES4).

The report presents an objection and comments received in the course of a
statutory consultation on a proposal to install a toucan crossing on the A423
Southam Road approximately 100 metres north of its junction with Dukes Meadow
Drive, Banbury. The crossing (a signal controlled crossing for use by both
pedestrians and pedal cyclists) has been proposed to help improve pedestrian and
pedal cyclist safety in light of the development of adjacent land for residential
purposes.

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve the
implementation of proposal as advertised and described in the report CMDE4.



5.

Page 3

Proposed Controlled Parking Zone - Lye Valley Area, Headington,
Oxford (Pages 9 - 20)

Forward Plan Ref: 2016/057
Contact: Owen Jenkins, Highways, Transport & Waste Services Manager Tel:
(01865) 323304

Report by Interim Deputy Director for Environment & Economy — Commercial
(CMDES5).

The report presents objections received in the course of a statutory consultation on
a proposal to introduce a new Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) and Resident Permit
Parking scheme in the Lye Valley Area of Headington in Oxford.

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve the
implementation of the Lye Valley CPZ proposals as advertised and amended
as set out in the report CMDES.

Proposed Puffin Crossing - Cumnor Hill, Cumnor (Pages 21 - 30)

Forward Plan Ref: 2014/115
Contact: Owen Jenkins, Service Manager for Highways, Transport & Waste Tel:
(01865) 323304

Report by Interim Deputy Director for Environment & Economy — Commercial
(CMDES®).

A development of 192 houses on the former Timbmet site on Cumnor Hill has
provided funds for a new Puffin crossing to aid pedestrian movements, for both new
residents and also the local community. Cumnor Parish Council has been active in
seeking implementation of the new crossing and its location and in July 2014
undertook surveys to determine the desire line used by members of the public and
school children and the location of the crossing has been based on this survey

The report considers responses received to a consultation on the proposal.

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve the
implementation of proposal as advertised and described in the report CMDES.

Proposed 20mph Speed Limit - Brightwell-cum-Sotwell Village
(Pages 31 - 40)

Forward Plan Ref: 2016/092
Contact: Owen Jenkins, Service Manager for Highways, Transport & Waste Tel:
(01865) 323304

Report by Interim Deputy Director for Environment & Economy — Commercial
(CMDE?7).

The report presents objections and comments received in the course of a statutory



Page 4

consultation on a proposal to replace the existing 30mph speed limit throughout the
village roads in Brightwell-cum-Sotwell south of High Road with a 20mph speed
limit. Funded by the Parish Council the proposal is aimed at improving road safety
within the village.

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve the
implementation of the proposal as advertised.

Proposed Traffic Calming Amendments - Woodstock Road,
Stonesfield (Pages 41 - 54)

Forward Plan Ref: 2016/093
Contact: Owen Jenkins, Service Manager for Highways, Transport & Waste Tel:
(01865) 323304

Report by Interim Deputy Director for Environment & Economy — Commercial
(CMDES).

The report presents objections and comments received in the course of a statutory
consultation on a proposal to amend the existing traffic calming feature on the
Woodstock Road, at the eastern entrance to Stonesfield village.

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve the
implementation of proposal as advertised and described in the report CMDES.

Proposed 30mph Speed Limit Extension - A361 Burford Road,
Chipping Norton (Pages 55 - 62)

Forward Plan Ref: 2016/080
Contact: Owen Jenkins, Service Manager for Highways, Transport & Waste Tel:
(01865) 323304

Report by Interim Deputy Director for Environment & Economy — Commercial
(CMDED9).

This report presents objections and comments received in the course of a statutory
consultation on the proposal to extend the 30mph limit on the A361 Burford Road,
southwards from its current terminal point to replace part of the existing 40mph
speed limit. The amendment to the speed limit here has been proposed for road
safety reasons as a result of the residential development of land adjacent to the
A361 Burford Road, at the southern end of Chipping Norton which will create a new
junction on the A361.

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve the
implementation of the proposal as advertised.



10.

Page 5

Oxfordshire County Council Internal Energy Management
Strategy 2015 - 2020 (Pages 63 - 86)

Forward Plan Ref: 2015/106
Contact: Victoria Fletcher, Interim Spatial Infrastructure Planning & Resources
Manager Tel: 07500 131855

Report by the Acting Deputy Director for Environment & Economy — Strategy &
Infrastructure Planning (CMDE10).

Oxfordshire County Council spends around £7 million on the energy needed for its
corporate estate and activities. This energy use results in the emission of around
20,000 tonnes of greenhouse gases each year. Medium term predictions of
increasing prices create a risk of financial pressure to the organisation if energy is
not managed effectively.

During the past year the Energy Strategy team has worked with colleagues across
the organisation to develop an Energy Strategy to set out the framework to manage
energy use in all areas across our estate and activities to meet the following
objectives:

. Maintain corporate energy costs at or below 2014/15 levels by reducing our
energy use and purchasing energy effectively.
o Reduce greenhouse gas emissions from our properties and activities by 3%

year on year, on average, in line with the Oxfordshire 2030 Sustainable
Community Strategy commitment.

o Make use of renewables and innovative new technologies where
economically viable to reduce risk of supply, reduce costs and generate
income.

The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to support the objectives and
principles set out in the Oxfordshire County Council Internal Energy Strategy
2015-2020 document.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

CMDE4

Division(s): Banbury Grimsbury & Castle

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 13 OCTOBER 2016

PROPOSED TOUCAN CROSSING - A423 SOUTHAM ROAD,
BANBURY

Report by Interim Director of Environment & Economy (Commercial)

Introduction

1. This report presents an objection and comments received in the course of the
statutory consultation on the proposal to install a toucan crossing on the A423
Southam Road approximately 100 metres north of its junction with Dukes
Meadow Drive, Banbury.

Background

2. The toucan crossing (a signal controlled crossing for use by both pedestrians
and pedal cyclists) is proposed to help improve pedestrian and pedal cyclist
safety in light of the development of adjacent land for residential purposes.
The location and detail of these proposals is shown at Annex 1 and Annex 2.

Consultation

3. The formal consultation on the proposals was carried out between 19 May
and 10 June 2016. A public notice was advertised in the Banbury Guardian on
19 May, and street notices were placed at intervals along the road in the
immediate vicinity. An email was sent to statutory consultees, including
Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Town
& District Councils and the relevant local County Councillors (including those
representing the other neighbouring divisions).

4. One objection to the proposal was received during the consultation period,
and this — along with other comments received as part of the consultation —
are summarised at Annex 3. Copies of all the responses received are
available for inspection in the Members’ Resource Centre.

5. Thames Valley Police had no objection to the proposal, but did raise some
concerns regarding the current conditions at the site.

6. Councillor Beal (the local Member for Banbury Grimsbury & Castle) indicated
his support for the proposals.

Objections and concerns

Page 1



CMDE4

7. The objection was submitted on the part of residents of an existing dwelling
adjacent to the proposed crossing on the grounds that the crossing would
result in large number of pedestrians congregating to use the crossing and the
consequent loss of privacy, and that the crossing would result in noise
disturbance due to vehicles (including lorries) braking and then waiting at the
crossing, together with the noise from the audible crossing signals.
Additionally concerns were expressed over safety, including on the grounds
that the current 40mph speed limit is poorly respected, and also that it would
increase the difficulties for drivers of vehicles exiting the access to adjacent
properties.

Response to objections and concerns

8. Signalled crossings are routinely provided on roads of a similar character
(taking account of the traffic flows, speed limit and the proximity of residential
development and accesses) and have very good safety records. It is accepted
that the major residential development in the area has and will continue to
change the character of the environment in the vicinity of the existing
residential premises, and that there will clearly be an increase in pedestrian
activity and the potential for some additional noise for the reasons cited.
However, again on the basis of experience of other similar sites, it is not
judged that these will lead to a significant nuisance. Specifically on the matter
of the audible signals, these in fact would not be provided with the layout
proposed due to the possibility of pedestrians mistaking which of the two
separate signalled crossing points the audible signal applied.

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives
9. The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of pedestrians and

pedal cyclists in the area which will significantly increase as a result of the
adjacent residential development.

Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)
10.  Full funding for the proposal has been secured from the developer. The

appraisal of the proposals, consultation and preparation of all paperwork has
been undertaken by E&E officers as part of their normal duties.

RECOMMENDATION
11.  The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve

the implementation of proposal as advertised and described in the
report.

CHRIS McCARTHY
(Interim) Deputy Director of Environment & Economy (Commercial)

Background papers: Plan of proposed restrictions
Consultation responses

Page 2



CMDE4

Contact Officers: David Tole 07920 084148
September 2016

Page 3



OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT

ANNEX 1

Crematorium

Eé‘z

¥ obed

Gorse lof proposed Toucan crossing

Hardwick Hill
House

o ———

3%%%%%%%%%

)

%%%ﬁw

:/o
e
e

)

TIH IIMAHVH

s
S

.

O/O
O/O
|O/o

oﬁ

!

o/io/io/o

()

hcv e
BANBURY |

SITE OF RESIDENTIAL Q\OQ\O%
i}b DEVELOPMENT, b
oo R
: (aieifeireifcifolioliel

-~ s WEADOW DRIVE
D
R —
VN £\

= ——

—

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Oxfordshire County Council. © Crown Copyright and database rights 2016. 100023343

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

Date drawn: 10/05/2016

easting. 445656, northing. 243118

Map centre:




’ANDORA LAND ACCES

ANNEX 2

\
\
\
-
[ /'/
b
(Y L ]
i
A
VA
v
A
L
'

R=10m
AN
SIGN TO DIAG. 956

EXISTING
3

\
\ R=10m
N IS AR P O ARD
SOLAS BOLLARD e e
g WITH DIAG a MARKINGS TO DIAG.
~ AAC 055.1

1O Bl ~ | MARKINGS TO DIAG. 1093
AND DIAG. 1012.1 ~ |
APPLIED ROAD LAYOU

jrv{;,,wr“ -

WARKING TO

DIAG. 1C

o ﬁRn

MARKINGS TO DIAG.

S EXISTING ADS

SIGN TO DIAG. 956
N
10 BE RELOGA

50m & ¢
/

ON APPRO?

/' TRO 50-40mph

MARKING
EXTENT O
3

EXISTING DIAG.
MARKING TO BE REMOVED
REPLACED I

1040 (4/2/100) MARKINGS

1004

[
TATION

) PROVIDE SUITAE

R PRL

INED TO

VISIBILITY

ALTERNATIVE
A423 HAR

SCALE




9 abed

ANNEX 3

CMDE4

RESPONDENT

SUMMARISED COMMENTS

(1) Thames Valley
Police

No objection — with the following comments:

Accepting the proposed crossing in the current state of the road character and condition is a risk that
the highway authority must take, especially in view of the likely developer contribution towards
construction costs.

This however is not considered best practice when establishing a road safety feature, where key
infrastructure has not been completed that could potentially affect its safe operation and use.

The sightlines are currently good and inter-visibility is not currently considered a safety factor. The
crossing is located close to one residential property and a reasonable distance north of the
roundabout junction. However there is the potential for rear end shunt accidents when the light
crossing lights are red for traffic.

(2) Local County
Councillor

Supports — with the following comments:

Seems to be a very sensible thing to put a crossing on this road.

(3) Resident,
(Southam Road,
Banbury)

Objects — with the following comments:

There will be pedestrians continually stood right outside our bedroom window & garden 24 hours 7
days per week.

When pedestrians press the button to change the lights and stop the traffic to successfully cross the
road safely, this will be a continuous beeping and flashing of the traffic lights which come with a
toucan crossing able to be heard and seen whilst in our house at all hours of the day with no rest.

The traffic stopping directly outside our house will also poses a high noise problem and at unsociable




J abed

CMDE4

hours of the day especially lorries.
Please also consider the amount of extra cars which will be travelling up & down the Southam Road.

The speed limit is 40 hardly anyone adhering to this as it stands now. There would be an accident
waiting to happen if a toucan crossing was installed in the proposed location.

The Toucan Crossing will also cause significant traffic problems for us & our neighbours at Hardwick
house turning right and left outside of the driveway.

These points | have highlighted significantly reduce our privacy as the height of the footpath has been
raised for the current housing development being undertaken. | am as you can imagine not happy with
the positioning of this proposed toucan crossing.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda ltem 5

Division: Churchill & Lye Valley

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 13 OCTOBER 2016

PROPOSED CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE - LYE VALLEY AREA,
HEADINGTON, OXFORD

Report by Interim Deputy Director of Environment & Economy (Commercial)

Introduction

1. This report presents objections received in the course of a statutory
consultation on a proposal to introduce a new Controlled Parking Zone (CP2)
and Resident Permit Parking scheme in the Lye Valley Area of Headington in
Oxford.

Background

2. Parts of the Lye Valley area already experience problems of commuter
parking by non-residents and further parking pressures are anticipated
following the development of the Oxford University Old Road Campus as this
is the nearest area which does not have parking controls to protect residents.
The Old Road site has planning consent and the first phase is due to open
soon — further phases plus expansion at the Churchill, Warneford and Nuffield
Hospitals will increase parking problems in Lye Valley. In approving these
developments, funding has been obtained to enable the extension of CPZs in
this part of Headington.

Proposals

3. Following informal consultation with all residents in 2015 and discussions with
local County Councillor, proposals have been drawn up to introduce a CPZ
with a Permit Parking system for residents and their visitors, combined with
‘limited waiting’ of up to 2 hours without requiring a permit.

4. It is proposed that the CPZ will only operate between the hours of 9.00am to
5.00pm Monday to Friday, which will mean that outside of those days and
times a permit will not be required and the two hour waiting restriction will not
apply. Permits for residents and visitors will be available to residents under
the same conditions and charges as other CPZs in Oxford and there will be
no restriction on the number of residents permits issued to each household.

5. In view of the self-contained nature of the Lye Valley area and the availability
of kerbside and off-street parking for residents it is proposed that the CPZ
would be a Minimum Impact Zone. This means that there would no formalised
parking bays but rather the Zone would just have entry and exit signs
indicating that all vehicles parked on-street within the Zone must display the
relevant permit or can only park for up to 2 hours, during the Zone Operating

Page 9



10.

11.

CMDES

Hours. The proposed Zone Boundary is shown at Annex 1 (a large scale plan
will be available at the meeting).

It is proposed to retain the existing ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions
(double yellow lines) within the CPZ but to remove the existing daytime
waiting restriction (single yellow line) on the northern side of Cinnaminta
Road. Parking restrictions along The Slade were approved as part of the
Access to Headington scheme and these are not affected by this proposed
CPZ.

Consultation

Formal consultation on the proposals was carried out between 19 May 2016
and 17 June 2016. Letters were sent to over 800 properties in the affected
area and street notices were placed on site. A public notice was placed in the
Oxford Times on 19 May, with all documentation emailed to the statutory
consultees including Thames Valley Police, Fire & Rescue Service,
Ambulance service and local County Councillors. All Consultation documents
were available for inspection on Council’s Consultation Portal, at County Hall
and at Headington Library. A total of 35 responses were received and these
are summarised at Annex 2 along with officer responses.

Some 17 objections were received and the themes of those were that
respondents did not want the proposed CPZ as they did not consider it
necessary, did not want to pay for permits, and felt that the Hospitals should
have to pay. Likewise objectors felt that Hospitals should provide adequate
parking for their staff and visitors and that Planning Approval should not be
granted without adequate parking on site. There was also objection to the
daytime waiting restriction being removed from the north side of Cinnaminta
Road, and also doubts about the effectiveness of the CPZ without adequate
enforcement.

Other comments received included that the CPZ was not needed for some
parts of the proposed Zone area, that marked bays were needed to protect
driveways and prevent bad parking, more residents will pave their gardens
and the resulting additional dropped kerbs will further reduce available on-
street parking. Some respondents felt that the Zone should operate at all
times rather than Monday to Friday daytime only.

Councillor Liz Brighouse supports the proposal and Thames Valley Police
have no objections. Stagecoach have suggested some additional yellow lines
in Hollow Way near its junction with The Slade in view of junction changes
proposed for the ‘Access to Headington’ project.

Response to objections and comments

As noted above, the scheme is proposed to address the current and future
parking pressures in the Lye Valley area for the benefit of residents and their
visitors. The design of the scheme — to require permits only during the
daytime Monday to Friday and with Zone-wide 2-hour parking for short stays —
is intended to have the least impact on those who live in or visit the area. The

Page 10



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

CMDES

charges made for permits are to fund the ongoing operation of the CPZs,
including enforcement.

The suggestion that the Hospitals and other developments should not receive
planning approval without providing parking for all staff and visitors is not in
line with the long-established policies of the County and City Councils to work
with employers to reduce peak time travel by car and to encourage more
sustainable travel such as by bike, bus or Park and Ride.

The layout of the roads in Lye Valley together with the small size of the area is
such that to exclude parts of the area from a CPZ would simply result in
parking in those streets by commuters and those wishing to avoid having to
pay for a permit.

With regard to requests that the CPZ be of the more ‘traditional’ design with
marked bays and signs in order that parking occurs in a more orderly way, it is
considered that once the pressure for space is reduced by the removal of
non-residents’ vehicles then there is no need to be prescriptive about where
residents park. However this matter will be kept under review once the CPZ is
in operation.

The concerns that have been expressed regarding the potential for an
increase in the amount of front gardens being converted into off-street parking
are noted. In response, one of the reasons for the limited hours of operation of
the scheme is to try to reduce this as permits will not be required for evening
and weekend parking.

The additional restrictions in Hollow Way requested by Stagecoach were not
considered as necessary as part of the Access to Headington proposals, but
could be considered in the future if found to be required.

The request to retain the single yellow line on Cinnaminta Road that is
proposed to be replaced by the zone-wide restriction is accepted as it is
recognised that there are particular access issues due to the presence of
adjacent businesses. Consequently it is recommended that the existing
restriction remains in place.

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives
The proposal would help reduce and prevent commuter parking, reduce the

risk of accidents and improve road safety by facilitating the safe passage of
vehicles.

Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)

Full funding for the implementation of a Controlled Parking Zone has been
secured through S106 developer agreements.

Page 11



CMDES5
RECOMMENDATION
20. The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve

the implementation of the Lye Valley CPZ proposals as advertised and
amended as set out in the report.

CHRIS McCARTHY
(Interim) Deputy Director of Environment & Economy (Commercial)

Background papers: Plan of proposed restrictions
Consultation responses

Contact Officers: David Tole 07920 084148

September 2016

Page 12



g abed

Drawing No.

Revision 1

:

i
> séqm‘\\:fm

P
xcombe
172\ AR
=11 Kennington
_Bayworthl22f ‘ﬁ

g

\, Hinkse
\ 2 {\,&\

d

WX /ﬂg\ff?ﬂﬁﬂ DM

A |
O -

\Yanhame

C
22
Qk;gfittlemoref

Sl Ao
ZSandford-

Sz

Z
4§ Stanton

Stdohni ||
Forest
i : Hill
T

=
“SHorspath
)

> =5
Vo\wley Cuddesﬁon \!
So

0

Gaf%ingtoﬂ

//dh};

S

=

adloy

|
\‘\ March'Raldon

Area to be considered for
Controlled Parking Zone

Site Location

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright Unauthorised reproduction infringes.
Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Oxfordshire County
Council. © Crown Copyright and database rights 2016. 100023343

Mark Kemp
Deputy Director - Commercial
Environment and Economy

OXFORDSHIRE =5

Speedwell Street

COUNTY COUNCIL &

Tel: (01865) 815700
Fax: (01865) 241577

CABINET MEMBER
FOR ENVIRONMENT
13 OCTOBER 2016

LYE VALLEY, OXFORD

PROPOSED CONTROLLED
PARKING ZONE
Drawing Status
Drawn by: [Checked by: [Approved by:
Cm
Date drawn: [Date checked: Date approved:

07/07/2016

Drawing No.

Revision 1




i1 ebed

Annex 2

CMDES

Respondent

Comments

Officer Response

Thames Valley
Police

No Obijection

Noted

Commercial
Manager,
Stagecoach

With the proposed changes to The Slade/Horspath
Driftway/Hollow Way roundabout inc. the new right-turn lane
from The Slade, traffic flow may be best if parking not allowed
between this junction and 236 Hollow Way M-F 0700-1900 as
currently northbound traffic on Hollow Way can be blocked as
isn't sufficient space for parked cars & 2 lanes of southbound
traffic on roundabout approach.

Not deemed necessary as part of Access
to Headington Proposals. Could be
considered in future if proves to be needed.

Resident of Bulan
Rd

Can 10 min parking provision be made in Cinnaminta Rd for
Shop users? Is under the impression that the existing SYL on
north side is being made a DYL? Can something be put in place
to keep south side pavement clear as parked Shop Proprietors
vehicles overhang pavement causing obstruction for those with
impaired mobility.

Garage access road off Bulan Rd opp. Coverly Rd needs to be
managed as unrestricted parking there would churn-up grass
and need bollards to prevent. Possibly garage area itself would
need signage to prevent all day parking.

Parking would be permitted for up to 2
hours without a Permit.

SYL is not being made a DYL & so will be
no increased pressure on the southern
side.

This area is not Public Highway, but could
consider ‘Private Road’ signs from Bulan
Road.

Resident of Bulan
Rd

Fully supports and agrees with the proposed CPZ.

Noted

Resident of Bulan
Rd

Against proposed parking charge & will have to tarmac front
garden to avoid it, as will most people resulting in more dropped
kerbs & less on-street parking & worse drainage with flooding
already bad at the junction.

Wife has an adapted mobility car & will there be any
concessions for disabled?

Considers the CPZ to be just a money making scheme.

Dropped kerbs and tarmacked front
gardens would be subject to usual
application and approval procedures.

A Disabled Badge qualifies as a Permit in
all CPZs
Permit charges only cover costs.

Resident of Bulan
Rd

Strongly supports a CPZ, but opposes not having marked bays
as does not protect driveways & prevent obstructive pavement

The objective is to remove Commuter
Parking, which should reduce inconsiderate




G} abed

CMDES

parking. HMOs are a problem and marked bays would act as a
deterrent.

24/7 Hospital working may necessitate all week restrictions, but
suggests a lenient weekend system be trialled for 6 months.

parking.

Future changes to the days/hours of
operation of the CPZ could be considered if
parking pressures increase.

Resident of Dene
Rd

Objection as is not needed for whole of Dene Rd. City Council
is making the Hospitals provide additional parking for their
Developments which should be adequate. Not close enough to
warrant it & why is Wood Farm not being considered which is
closer. Nos. 1-70 Dene Rd should not be included and such
Zone should only start at junction Coverley Rd.

What about elderly who need regular day visits & Tradespeople.

Restricting vehicle size is incorrect as will interfere with
livelihoods.
Just a money-making exercise and will not pay for a Permit.

Any part of Dene Rd not included would
suffer from displaced parking. Hospitals
will only have sufficient parking for their
operational needs and will not provide for
general commuter parking. Wood Farm
issues are subject to a future review.
Residents aged 70+ receive free Visitors
Permits and registered Carers can have
Permits issued for free. Traders Permits
will be available to apply for.

The restriction on vehicle size applies in
most CPZs to prevent parking by vehicles
which are inappropriate for a residential
area.

Permit Charges only cover costs

Resident of Dene
Rd

Please include 'designated parking' for Dene Rd after Bulan Rd
junction as road is narrow and inconsiderate parking causes
obstruction, together with parking on road hump. Some
properties have white line restrictions reducing parking
opportunities.

Who will enforce as parking enforcement officer rarely/never
seen?

The objective is to remove commuter
parking whilst introducing a system as
flexible for residents as possible and not
prescribing how they park. Removing
commuter parking should help address
inconsiderate parking.

Enforcement will be carried out by the
Council’s contractor, as in other CPZs

Resident of Dene
Rd

Do need a CPZ but does not think it should be Minimum Impact
as that will not control parking because most of roads and paths
are too narrow needing accurate parking on the paths and
'designated' parking bays. Increased parking, with opposite
parking is causing difficulty getting out of driveways &
obstruction. Uses a Mobility Scooter & finds paths obstructed.

The objective is to remove commuter
parking whilst introducing a system as
‘flexible’ for residents as possible & not
prescribing how they park. Removing
commuter parking should help address
inconsiderate parking. With the removal of




9} abed

CMDES

Roads are for driving not parking & parking spaces should be
limited with a restriction on the no. of Permits per Property to
counter problem from HMOs. Where possible, residents should
open up their garden & park off road.

commuter parking, ‘permit restraint’ is not
considered necessary. Dropped kerbs and
garden parking will be subject to usual
application & approval rules.

Resident of Dene
Rd

Supports this proposal for a CPZ for the Lye Valley area.

Noted

Resident of Dene
Rd

Given the 2 hour waiting limit and the number of traffic wardens
who will be policing the CPZ, it is unlikely to catch many non-
residents and If they were to get a ticket once a week it is likely
to be cheaper than the cost of paying for parking at the
redeveloped Old Road campus. If the CPZ is brought in it must
be policed rigorously and is what you would expect from the
£60+ cost of a permit. Hollow Way has Urban Clearways that
are rarely policed.

Would like to see figures showing where the revenue generated
would go to ensure this isn't just a profit generating scheme.
Why is planning permission being granted for the redevelopment
if their proposals do not include adequate parking provision?
Why isn't Oxford University being charged, not residents?
Parking has been an issue all the time I've lived here. Getting
the kerb dropped to extend my drive to two cars wide seems to
be a very bureaucratic process and so haven't gone further.

If you do decide to bring in the CPZ could you carry out a
carriageway or footway improvement scheme and add dropped
kerbs where people require? | would be happy to pay for the
service if it was a one stop shop done through the council at cost
This would improve parking in the Lye Valley area and stop cars
from obstructing pavements all the time not just weekday
working hours.

Permit Charges will provide for adequate
enforcement and should deter commuter
parking.

The County Council publishes an annual
report on civil parking enforcement which is
available on the website and sets out the
financial details of the parking operation.

It is to deal with both the existing and
anticipated parking issues that the CPZ has
been developed.

Dropped kerbs will continue to be subject
to the usual Application and approval
procedures

Resident of Dene
Rd

Objecting as penalises residents who are currently able to park
for free on roads outside their homes. It is the product of a poor
planning decision on the Old Road plans. It is for profit and not
convinced what benefits this Annual fee will bring. How often will
the traffic warden be in the CPZ? Does not address concerns

The suggestion that the Hospitals and
other developments should not receive
planning approval without providing parking
for all staff and visitors is not in line with the
long-established policies of the County and




/| ebed

CMDES

about being able to park outside my home at night and the issue
of shift workers at Old Road campus. Why wasn't adequate
underground parking for the campus stipulated if they want to
attract the best talents to work there. The campus should pay,
not residents. It appears to push problems on to local
communities and create ill will.

City Councils to work with employers to
reduce peak time travel by car and to
encourage more sustainable travel such as
by bike, bus or Park and Ride.

Resident of
Glebelands

Do not include Glebelands, Lye Valley and the streets in
between as there is plenty of space in the daytime and would
not want to pay for Permits when no problem exists.

Any roads not included would suffer from
displaced parking.

Resident of Hollow
Way

Is over 70 and Parks off road at all times and will they have to
buy a Residents Permit?

No, there is no need for a Permit if not
intending to park on the road for more than
2 hours during the ‘Restricted Hours’

Resident of Hollow
Way

Selling Permits will only move problem elsewhere. It's a money
making venture. Build a multi-storey car park at the NOC &
charge to park & give money to NHS. You have a budget & so
do most families.

The Scheme is designed to address the
problems that adjacent developments will
bring and the Permit charges are to cover
the costs of administering the Scheme.
The building of a multi-storey car park at
the NOC would be a matter for the NHS to
decide upon & fund.

Resident of Inott
Furze

Hospitals should provide ample parking. Residents should
decide. May need some control on Hospital Visitor's & Workers
parking but should not have to pay for it.

The suggestion that the Hospitals and
other developments should not receive
planning approval without providing parking
for all staff and visitors is not in line with the
long-established policies of the County and
City Councils to work with employers to
reduce peak time travel by car and to
encourage more sustainable travel such as
by bike, bus or Park and Ride.

Resident of Lye
Valley

in favour of a CPZ in this area

Noted

Resident of Peat
Moors

Welcomes proposals, but believes should be marked bays and
lines across driveways and residents should not be allowed to
park across own driveways causing access problem for
neighbour. Will need regular enforcement, or 2hr parking should

It is the aim of the proposals to prevent
commuter parking, whilst being as flexible
as possible for residents, and not to control
how people park. Removing commuter




g1 abed

CMDES

be dropped from Proposals. Scheme should operate 8am to
6pm 7days a week as their neighbour is as much a problem as
commuter parking.

parking should reduce the incidence of
inconsiderate parking.

Resident of Peat
Moors

Objects on the following points:-

o If there is not enough parking at the Hospitals, then a CPZ
will simply move problem elsewhere

e Further Hospital expansion should have Planning Condition
of adequate on-site parking

o |f Hospitals can't afford adequate parking they should not be
allowed to expand and why hasn't residential development
on Warneford land been stopped and looked at for parking

e Should not have to pay to park when failing is by Planners &
Highways staff

e |tis a stealth tax

e Existing double yellow lines on Peat Moors do not get
enforced, but suspects they would get tickets for not
displaying Permits

e The Slade is already heavily congested & further Hospital
expansion shouldn't be allowed

e Will the Bullingdon Community Centre car park be included
and if so how enforced.

The suggestion that the Hospitals and
other developments should not receive
planning approval without providing parking
for all staff and visitors is not in line with the
long-established policies of the County and
City Councils to work with employers to
reduce peak time travel by car and to
encourage more sustainable travel such as
by bike, bus or Park and Ride.

Permit charges are to cover operational
costs only.

Enforcement of parking restrictions is
carried out throughout the City.

The Access to Headington scheme is
intended to address issues such as
congestion along The Slade.

The Bullingdon Community Centre car park
would not be included in the CPZ as it is
not public highway.

Resident of The Raises a question about parking behind the flats where he This area is not public highway and so will
Slade parks. It is a row of Council garages, accessed from Bulan Rd. not be part of the CPZ.

Asks if this area is to be included in restrictions
Resident of The Generally in favour and supports a Minimum Impact Zone Permit charges will cover the cost of
Slade provided it's enforced. The introduction of permit free parking enforcement. The parking bays in the

bays outside flats 31-39 The Slade would be an absolute
disaster for the residents.

location referred to will have the same
restrictions as the rest of the CPZ.

Resident of Town
Furze

Should not go ahead as area has no problem from overflow
parking and concludes it is just to raise revenue. People will
tarmac gardens & ruin aesthetics of area & reduce road parking
potential. Agrees for some areas, but this area below Dene Rd

Adjacent Development would bring
problems of commuter parking. Permit
charges are to cover costs. Dropped kerbs
and garden parking will be subject to usual




61 abed

CMDES

going south-west towards Golf Course does not need it.

application & approval procedures. Any
part not included will suffer from displaced
parking.

Resident of Town
Furze

| reluctantly support a CPZ but given that we should have one, |
strongly support the Minimum Impact variety.

Noted

Resident Do not introduce as it's premature as no problem currently It is anticipated that the area will be
exists. Unrestricted parking makes the area more friendly and affected by additional commuter parking
welcoming. arising from nearby development. The
design of the scheme is intended to have
minimum impact on the neighbourhood.
Resident Agrees further restrictions are necessary, but objects to the It is now recommended to not proceed with
removal of the single yellow line on the north side of Cinnaminta | the implementation of the proposal to
Rd as the road is not wide enough for parked vehicles on both remove the single-yellow line limited
sides and would lead to a dangerous back-up of vehicles on The | waiting restriction on the northern side of
Slade trying to get into the road. Parking on the pavement Cinnaminta Road.
causes a danger for disabled & partially sited and cars already
park on the north side partially blocking access and reducing this
restriction would make that worse.
Resident Every resident they've spoken to is strongly against the scheme. | Consultation has proven most favour the
Most have off-road parking and is not a significant problem here. | introduction of a CPZ. It is anticipated that
Old Road is a considerable distance away. Covert agenda to adjacent Development will bring additional
push through to raise funds. No point whatsoever in engaging in | problems of commuter parking when
local politics. complete. Permit charges only cover costs.
Resident Would like to fully support this proposal for a CPZ for the Lye Noted
Valley area
Resident There isn't a parking problem on my street. This feels like just It is anticipated that adjacent Development
another way for the council to make money out of residents will bring additional problems of commuter
rather than provide a useful service. parking when complete. Permit charges
only cover costs.
Resident We do not want it. The hospitals should have to pay for the It is anticipated that adjacent Development

parking permits. We should not have to have it. We should not
have to pay for it.

will bring additional problems of commuter
parking when complete. Permit charges
only cover costs.




0z abed

CMDES

Resident We do not want it. The hospitals should have to pay for the As above
parking permits. We should not have to have it. We should not
have to pay for it.
Resident There is no choice in it for us the residents. We did not ask for it | The consultations have indicated general
or need or want it. But | can guarantee we will get it. support for the introduction of a CPZ.
We will be charged for it .We will have to have it.
Resident Very much in favour, but don't own a car. Belongs to Co-Wheels | A Permit for a Car Club vehicle would not
for short periods and sometimes hire a car for longer periods - be appropriate as such vehicles are only
Would they have a residents' parking permit for use in any car, used for short periods and would not be
or do permits relate to specific number plates? parked unused for more than 2 hours.
Permits are vehicle specific, but could be
applied for with a ‘hire’ document or
Visitors Permits could be used in the
vehicle as appropriate, but obviously would
not be needed if parking off road.
Resident of Unwelcome and unnecessary It is anticipated that new developments in
Cranmer Rd the area will bring additional problems of
(outside of area) commuter parking.
Resident of Not objecting Noted
Howard Street
(outside of area)
Unknown Objects to the proposal Noted




Agenda ltem 6

CMDEG6

Division: North Hinksey

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT- 13 OCTOBER 2016

PROPOSED PUFFIN CROSSING — CUMNOR HILL, CUMNOR

Report by Deputy Director for Environment & Economy (Commercial)

Introduction

This report considers responses to a consultation for a puffin crossing on
Cumnor Hill, Cumnor.

Background

2. A development of 192 houses on the former Timbmet site on Cumnor Hill
has provided funds for a new Puffin crossing to aid pedestrian movements,
both for the new residents, but also for the local community. Cumnor Parish
Council has been active in seeking the implementation of the new crossing
and its location. In July 2014 the Parish undertook surveys to determine the
desire line used by members of the public and school children and a copy of
their report is attached at Annex 1. The location of the crossing has been
based on this survey and is shown on the plans at Annex 2 and Annex 3.

Consultation

3. In July 2016 a formal consultation took place on the proposal. As part of the
consultation the Council wrote to local residents potentially affected by the
proposal along with the relevant Stakeholders, and public notices were
displayed on site.

4. Eleven responses were received eight of which had objections and concerns
to the proposed location, a summary of which can be seen at Annex 4.
Copies of all the responses received are available for inspection in the
Members’ Resource Centre.

5. Thames Valley Police had no objection to the proposal, but did raise some
concerns regarding the current conditions at the site.

Response to objections and concerns

6. The main issue raised by those objecting to the proposed crossing
concerned its location, with most feeling that it should be further west of the
proposed site. In response, it is accepted that at present there are a variety
of places where pedestrians cross Cumnor Hill but the conclusion drawn
from the survey undertaken by the Parish Council recommended the
proposed location and indicated that this is where the majority of pedestrians
cross in the vicinity of the new development (which is funding the crossing).

Page 21



10.

11.

12.

13.

CMDEG6

Another main concern raised was the narrowness of the northern footway
near the proposed crossing location. It is acknowledged that this is currently
heavily overgrown and the verge has encroached onto the footway; both
these issues will be addressed during construction of the crossing which will
then mean a footway of adequate width is provided.

The owner of the land to the north of the proposed crossing objects as it is
immediately adjacent to an existing vehicular entrance into the field behind.
The landowner believes the presence of the crossing would cause
obstruction to large agricultural vehicles entering or leaving and a danger to
pedestrians using the crossing. In response, officers met the objector on site
to discuss his concerns. Computer modelling has been undertaken of the
movement of all likely vehicles to use this access and the results (which
show the crossing would have no adverse effect on the access) have been
passed to the landowner.

Other concerns raised relate to the closeness of the proposed crossing to
Hurst Lane and the existing bus stop, and the noise arising from the audible
bleepers. These are matters of detail which can be addressed following
safety audits of the final design.

Finally, some respondents sought the removal of the existing pedestrian
refuge located west of the site of the proposed puffin crossing. Whilst its
removal might encourage more use of the new crossing, its retention would
continue to have a calming effect on traffic (by narrowing the road) and also
protect vehicles waiting to turn right into Kimmeridge Road. It is therefore
proposed to retain the refuge at least initially and to keep its presence under
review.

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives
The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of pedestrians in the

area which have increased as a result of the adjacent residential
development.

Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)
Full funding for the proposal has been secured from the developer. The

appraisal of the proposals, consultation and preparation of all paperwork has
been undertaken by E&E officers as part of their normal duties.

RECOMMENDATION
The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to

approve the implementation of proposal as advertised and described
in the report.

Page 22



CMDEG6

CHRIS McCARTHY
(Interim) Deputy Director of Environment & Economy (Commercial)

Background papers: Consultation documentation

Consultation Responses

Cumnor Parish Council Pedestrian Survey Report
Contact Officers: David Tole 07920 084148

September 2016

Page 23



CMDEG6
ANNEX 1

REPORT FROM CUMNOR PARISH COUNCIL

Pedestrian survey near J/IW Kimmeridge Road on Cumnor Hill — 17/07/2014

Background: It is believed that S106 money was provided by the developer
(Persimmon) of the former Timbmet industrial site to provide a light-controlled
pedestrian crossing on Cumnor Hill adjacent to the site. As a preliminary measure,
an uncontrolled central island crossing point was installed between Kimmeridge
Road and Hurst Lane about two years ago.

A previous 07.00 to 09.00 hrs. survey was conducted on 18™ November 2013 from
the verge near 145 Cumnor Hill. It showed that a significant proportion of the 34
pedestrians leaving the Persimmon site crossed over the road (S>N) on their way
to the Colegrove Down in-bound bus stop. It was also noted that 20+ children
exiting Chawley Lane crossed (N>S) using the central island on their way via Hurst
Lane to Matthew Arnold School.

In order to obtain a clearer idea of the likely “desire line” for a crossing, today’s
second two-hour survey was conducted from a vantage point close to the junction
with Kimmeridge Road.

Method: Today’s survey was conducted from 07.00 to 09.00 hrs. The weather
was dry, warm and sunny. A simple manual tally gate system was used to record
the number of pedestrians seen to cross Cumnor Hill. For ease of recording the
adjacent footway was deemed to comprise four sections on both the north and
south side of the road as follows,

North side of Cumnor Hill
A. An approx. 50 metre section west of Chawley Lane
B. An approx. 130 metre section between Chawley Lane and (opposite) J/W
Kimmeridge Road
C. An approx. 90 metre section between (opposite) J/IW Kimmeridge Road and
(opposite) J/W Hurst Lane
D. An approx. 50 metre section east of (opposite) J/W Hurst Lane

South side of Cumnor Hill
E. An approx. 50 metre section east of Hurst Lane
F. An approx. 90 metre section between J/W Hurst Lane and J/W Kimmeridge
Road
G. An approx. 130 metre section between Kimmeridge Road and (opposite)
H.

J/W Chawley Lane
An approx. 50 metre section west of (opposite) J/W Chawley Lane

N.B. The central island crossing is located close to J/W Kimmeridge Road within
and between sections C and F.

Results:

Page 24



CMDEG6

e A total of 94 pedestrians were observed to cross Cumnor Hill during the two
hour period

e Of the 35 who crossed from north to south, 19 did so from areas C to F, of
whom 17 were school children and all crossed at the central island. [N.B.
some senior pupils from M/A School broke up 2 weeks ago]

e Of the 59 who crossed south to north, 21 crossed from area G to B (none of
whom used the central island), 26 from F to C (most but not all of whom
crossed using the central island), and 12 from E to D

e Some of those crossing from G to B were young children, accompanied by
parents, and perhaps on their way to Cumnor Primary School; a number
were garage employees who crossed back and forth from site to site

e Most of those who crossed (S>N) from area E to D had emerged from the
footpath (approx. 50 metres east of Kimmeridge Road) leading from the
development site. None of the 18 emerging from this footpath walked up-
hill to the crossing island

e Some of the 32 pedestrians who emerged from Kimmeridge Road and who
travelled downhill, did not cross at the central island but continued to walk
down hill until there was a gap in the traffic before crossing.

Conclusion: The desire line lies to the east of the central island crossing point. If
the crossing could be located further downhill, closer to Hurst Lane, i.e. in the bus
bay, it might be used by a greater number of pedestrians.

Comment: The current central-island crossing serves as an excellent pinch-point,

ensuring that motorists stay within the posted speed limit close to the junctions with
Kimmeridge Road and Hurst Lane.

Page 25



brawrghe. 5 201618-CON-DD0-0D1 Rwision [}

Key:

= - Proposed location of Puffin crossing

€ Crinwn Cogytight and Database dghts 2015 100023345

Raw, | Dpte | Purpose of revision Dvawr | Chescied| Anprovee)

haik Hogrre
Dty Dwci - Gl
Esrvliortiroil i Essnarin

OXFORDSHIRE S
COUNTY COUNCIL oo

i1 TNE
Tal (IIBSS} 318700
Fax 01685 241577

Prajec! 1ie
CUMMOR HILL
PUFFIN CROSSING
Drawiog Bls
PUFFIN CROSSING
PROPOSED LOCATION
Drawing Sishus FRELIMIMARY
Scalo @ A3 | Drawn by - Cneched by MW Approved by il
1500 ——
- \ A e
R X \ )/,\\ Tt Oarire Project I & FIIE et
R T NS AN s201E12
N e N brewina . 5.201618-CON-000-001 [ o




/.2 8bed

P Improvement Schemes\Schemes\S-201618 Cumnor Hill Pelican Crossingi07 Drawings\S-201618-PRE-1200-001 and 200-003.dwg

(&

&+ & E3 - 2] @, A .
da & 4 A 7
‘ ‘eab * LA 6}1¢ : ; .“_ N 4 %O Ty ‘i
ES & N - g '
% ‘:‘ + te + 5T TN @tp
® 4 Fo X Wb SN0 =
o S z 5
& o, 2 L )
& s S &2 G 3 @
8l S =_i> /A g
”’V\ PR D - & i
o :
& &/ =
/a0 : 1= S
s s ¥ o < faus) g H Al L|
v s iy > 5 & SECONDARY
b o () SCHooL, N
SRS CEES - 3 ; 2
3. & ae‘é 57/3 /e 2 ARSI
o 4
w4 4@@ & & % ,f}:‘ D G
&S 3 o chE s
& TN A= 3 ﬁ 8]
* el b £
NS % 'C%
B A e 5 2
NS %,
& &L+
& 4‘0‘ @ @
H N °
% & 0 : >
1 COFTT
v *
& i
£ 2 /{
- % + //
s
of - 3 7 &>
=] g 2 I’y e‘ & // & %
_____ & @ + @ // “ P§\
s b == &2
< " s _Q@.
.
Qfo3 @
- 9 / )
vy ROPOSED
2585 N OCATION OF
& ‘\0@ UFFIN CROSSING
S <7
R, A T : P
.DEROM B EE S N &
'\]OO s e £ ety
1\€ 3 "'*.%:-u%“ * X,
R : - &5 = T Lo ° & @
& L) "5 ta e N s
T & 'Y £y * &
\/ ‘4 .‘Q A & I3 n
LY
- L)
e, =
7 ¢ & & >
; N . ¢
i A - & 5 @ s
£y + %
4 B e
- % 7 : ‘4.‘, L, *
- R
& « :‘* } P 4 &
& * - * &
Py &
b2 &
&
L] & Fy

e 5-201618-CON-000-002 Revmion 0

©Crown Copytiht and Databiass ights 2015100023343

Rov. | Dale | Purposeof revision

Mark Kemp
Deputy Director - Commercial
Environment and Econom y

OXFORDSHIRE 5™

Speedvel| Street

COUNTY COUNCIL oxou

®1 NE
Tel: (01865) 815700
Fexc: (D1865) 241577

Project fite
CUMMOR HILL
PUFFIN CROSSING

D it
s PUFFIN CROSSING

PROPOSED LOCATION

ANNEX 3

Drawing Stotus CONSULTATION
Scale@As [Drmmby - [Credkedby . |79P v
NTS
Ei I
Onfordshire Project No. & Flle Ref

5-201618

Bwioie. 5 501618-CON-000-002 [ ®@n 0




gz abed

CMDEG6

ANNEX 4

RESPONDENT

SUMMARISED COMMENTS

Thames Valley Police

No objection providing this layout meets the approved standards
The following issues have been raised:

e The footway on the north side is extremely overgrown and reduced in width by overhanging
foliage. This foliage also seriously restricts visibility of traffic from the westbound direction and
considerable cut back is essential.

e Whilst on site, saw no desire to cross at this point (there is an existing crossing point further west
towards Kimmeridge Road) and enquires whether as part of the proposal that crossing point will
remain or be removed. Leaving it in situ may discourage use of the new formal crossing point.

Cumnor Parish Council

Ask that the existing central reservation be removed prior to the puffin crossing being installed.

Resident on the Cumnor
Development

Respondent suggests that the crossing could be better placed, i.e. nearer to the car garages i.e. past the
development if coming up from Botley.

No address given

Respondent objected for the following issues:

e Crossing will only be used at peak times, if at all.

e In completely wrong position for large housing development

e Noise pollution from beeping crossing and vehicles accelerating/deceleration




62 obed

CMDEG6

e Too close to junction of Hurst Lane, creates bind spot

¢ Right next to a grade 2-listed cottage C16, will adversely affect value and heritage (English Heritage
have been consulted)

¢ Right next to electricity sub-station, not a great idea as it will mean gatherings of youths presenting
obvious danger to life

e Crossing better placed further west

No address given

The point at which the crossing is proposed is a very narrow point and the footway on the opposite side to
Hurst Lane is particularly narrow, making it a less suitable crossing point than the islands further up the
Hill nearer to Kimmeridge Rd after the bus stop. More pedestrians are likely to use the point here.

No address given

Respondent believes the crossing is in the wrong place and will not pick up children at it's proposed
location.

Resident on Cumnor Hill

The owner of the land to the north of the above proposal strongly objects to the location of the Puffin
Crossing as this is immediately adjacent to an existing vehicular entrance into the field behind. It would
cause obstruction to large agricultural vehicles entering or leaving and a danger to pedestrians using the
crossing.

Respondent suggests that more suitable location of the crossing for those aiming for the village and the
school be Kimmeridge Road using the existing island crossing upgraded to a "Puffin", which has wider
footpaths than the proposed one which are only one metre deep.

No address given

Respondent raises the following concerns after speaking to some residents who use the busses regularly:

e There is a pedestrian crossing on the proposed location, it would be more advantageous to put the
puffin crossing on Chawley Lane opposite the Jaguar garage further up Cumnor hill where most
school children and families get off to access the Cumnor Ridge estate.

e As cars are coming off the carriageway they are coming down quite fast until they slow down much
further down Cumnor hill road.




CMDEG6

Resident on Cumnor Hill

Respondent raises the following issues:

e The current site lies too far down the Hill to be of use to most parents walking their children to school.

e At its proposed site, the crossing would take people to an old, narrow pavement which in many places
is overgrown and which often has cars parked half on the pavement outside the houses and also has
a number of driveways to negotiate.

e Proposed site is very close to the existing bus stop. Visibility around the crossing will necessary be
reduced when there is a bus on the stand.

Resident on Cumnor Hill

Respondent raises the following concerns over its location.

e Crossing sited in the wrong location
e Proposed crossing location is too close to Hurst Lane and the bus stop

0g abed

Resident from Kimmeridge
Road

In full support of the planned puffin crossing.




Agenda ltem 7

CMDE7

Division(s): Wallingford

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 13 OCTOBER 2016

PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT - BRIGHTWELL CUM SOTWELL
VILLAGE

Report by Deputy Director of Environment & Economy (Commercial)

Introduction

1. This report presents objections and comments received in the course of the
statutory consultation on the proposal to replace the existing 30mph speed
limit throughout the village roads south of High Road with a 20mph speed
limit.

Background

2. The 20mph speed limit — which will be funded by the Parish Council if
approved - is being proposed to help improve road safety within the village.
The location and detail of these proposals is shown at Annex 1.

Consultation

3. The formal consultation on the proposals was carried out between 14 July and
12 August 2016. Public notices were advertised in the Oxford Times on 14
June, and in the Wallingford Herald on 20 June. An email was sent to
statutory consultees, including Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue
Service, Ambulance service, Parish & District Councils and the relevant local
County Councillors.

4. A total of 11 responses were received during the consultation period, 2 of
which were objections, and these — along with 9 responses supporting the
proposals and other comments received as part of the consultation — are
summarised at Annex 2. Copies of all the responses received are available for
inspection in the Members’ Resource Centre.

Objections and concerns

5. Thames Valley Police objected to the proposals insofar as they include one
road (Didcot Road) within the proposed 20mph limit where the average
speeds are currently above 24mph, on the grounds that the Department for
Transport (DfT) guidelines on setting speed limits recommend that 20mph
speed limits without supporting traffic calming measures are only provided on
roads where average speeds do not currently exceed 24mph, and that
including roads where this guidance is not met will place an unrealistic
enforcement burden on the police.

Page 31



10.

11.

CMDE7

A further objection was received from a resident of the village on the grounds
that the 20mph speed limit was an over-reaction to some local difficulties with
inconsiderate drivers, and that the layout of the village roads in the main
helped ensure average speeds were low; furthermore the layout would in
practice make any enforcement activity by the police very hard to carry out in
practice. The resident expressed the view that the funding for the speed limit
would be better directed at providing additional warning signs for specific
hazards.

Response to objections and concerns

The objection by Thames Valley Police is noted; however Didcot Road was
the only location of the eight survey locations included within the current
proposals where average speeds currently exceed 24mph (see Annex 3 for a
plan of the speed survey locations and Annex 4 for a summary of the results).
The siting of the survey here was close to the western terminal point of the
proposed 20mph limit; east of this point a sharp bend will ensure that speeds
are well controlled within a relatively short distance of the terminal. It should
also be noted that the Parish Council withdrew their initial proposals for
including High Road within the 20mph limit, recognising that average speeds
over much of its length would be over 24mph.

The objection by the resident that the proposal is unnecessary due to the
character of the village roads is also noted, and it is agreed that in many
locations significantly exceeding 20mph is not possible. However, there are
also many locations where it is possible to exceed 20mph and where this can
feel threatening taking account of the lack of footways and restricted visibility,
and where the proposed 20mph limit may therefore help encourage drivers to
reduce speeds to the benefit of pedestrians and other vulnerable users
including cyclists and equestrians.

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives

The proposals would help reduce the risk of road traffic accidents and
encourage the use of sustainable travel modes including walking and cycling
within the village.

Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)
Full funding for the proposal has been secured from the Parish Council. The

appraisal of the proposals, consultation and preparation of all paperwork has
been undertaken by E&E officers as part of their normal duties.

RECOMMENDATION

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve
the implementation of the proposal as advertised.

Page 32



CMDE7

CHRIS McCARTHY
(Interim) Deputy Director of Environment & Economy (Commercial)

Background papers: Plan of proposed restrictions
Consultation responses

Contact Officers: David Tole 07920 084148

September 2016

Page 33



7g obed

PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT - BRIGHTWELL

OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT

ANNEX 1

{
Brighwpelg Manor
’//’,,, 'h /

2y
‘);"O‘If %4 4

Proposed 20mph in place of
existing 30mph speed limit
Proposed 20mph speed limit
terminal point

Existing 30mph speed limit
(to remain)

= Existing 50mph speed limit
(to remain)

Mackney Court
Farm

Sevel
Cotta
s
P
& 77
=
e
27
I
Sotwsll Hill «—‘
§ & 7 4
~Housg /Q— &
\\ 7 & %
3
Sand Elms

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Oxfordshire County Council. © Crown Copyright and database rights 2016. 100023343

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

Date drawn: 20/06/2016
Drawn by: CJM

Map centre:
easting. 458390, northing. 190680




Gg abed

ANNEX 2

CMDE7

RESPONDENT

SUMMARISED COMMENTS

(1) Thames Valley
Police

Objects — with the following comments:

The DfT & Police position is that 20mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing.

If the mean speed is 4mph or more over the proposed limit it is unlikely to be effective without
additional measures, such as engineering or continual enforcement.

On those roads where the means speeds are already above 24 mph this proposal would NOT be
supported by Thames Valley Police without additional engineering measures to achieve compliance.
TVP questions the willingness from OCC for additional traffic calming in the event of future complaints
about speed in the village.

(2) Resident,
(Kings Orchard)

Objects — with the following comments:

Feels the 20mph suggestion is a knee jerk reaction by a minority - after some cats were hit and that
some inconsiderate drivers driving through puddles and soaking pedestrians.

A number of the smaller roads in the village are not capable of being driven on at the permitted speed
of 30mph (i.e. Greenmere, Kings Orchard, Bell Lane, Church Lane and parts of the High Road and at
the severe bends in Sotwell Street, Brightwell Street and West End).

Changing the speed limit will not cause those parts to be driven any slower, stop idiots drenching
pedestrians or teach cats to not run out in front of cars and busses, nor will the limits be enforceable
as there are no straight lengths of road long enough to measure a vehicles speed in a manner
capable of securing a prosecution for speeding.

Would rather see better/enhanced signage warning of the narrow roads, blind bends, and pedestrians
in the road (as there are no foot paths in many sections).




9¢ abed

CMDE7

(3) Resident,
(West End)

Supports — with the following comments:

= Hopes that the area of the double bend where Didcot Road meets West End will be included, drivers
come round that bend far too fast.

= Cars park on the road in West End by the entrance to the graveyard and this forces drivers leaving the
village to take that bend on the wrong side of the road! This is really dangerous and it seems wrong
that cars are allowed to park on the road so close to the bend.

= Hope that there will not be speed humps in the village.

(4) Resident,
(Mackney Lane)

Supports — with the following comments:

» Feels that additional speed restrictions are definitely needed in Mackney Lane, which is a single track
lane.

(5) Resident,
(Greenmere)

Supports — with the following comments:

» In the last year at least three cats have been killed on the High Road, due to the number of people
driving far too quickly through the village.
=  Would like to see the High Road included with additional speed humps.

(6) Resident,
(Mackney Lane)

Supports — with the following comments:

» Would like to see the 20mph speed limit in the entire village, including High Road.

(7) Resident,
(Greenmere)

Supports — with the following comments:

= There also needs to be speed bumps in the Greenmere area, my young daughter has nearly been hit




/€ ebed

CMDE7

by two cars this year alone.

(8) Resident,
(Bell lane)

Supports — with no additional comments.

(9) Resident,
(Brightwell-cum-
Sotwell)

Supports — with the following comments:

= | support the 20mph speed limit throughout the village, including Mackney Lane and the Recreation
Ground. Particularly delivery drivers speed excessively through the narrow streets and lanes, where
often young children play.

(10) Resident,
(High Road)

Supports — with no additional comments.

(11) Resident,
(Thames Mead)

Supports — with no additional comments.




3¢ obed

BRIGHTWELL-CUM-SOTWELL - SPEED SURVEY POINTS OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT

ANNEX 3

Site 6: / Az
S / 4 &S S 11t
(High Road) & Cz}‘;r;es
Site 8: , &\g\
(Church Lane) A sinofun Hill ™=y 7
1S &b ///
| «Bg‘?’/

o4
)

[ =Y .
: o gl [/
B y
. Grove S| 8 Playi o 4School | B A
Site 7: Cottages 5 S Hai g P::T;fgg 3|! .."“1ﬂ==‘1
(Didcot Road) &S [-G SN o Sl WFSRN BEL;
Ya S Ve ot et Sotwall Hill
I S /" ® Housé
e e <
b i ar Meml ) ,,,? f - gg’ v;,‘%‘
Lz < 0 g
’ o ‘ Pa‘ﬁ‘:lvb b o ula i E"' S
= | = i WE L
7 0 sy // af LS s;- . l!A !- \\

| REET
~; ~J
Brightwell Manor § L/ @,,’z \ N .\ =
Site 1 iy, AIREY LN BINSG f 5
ite 1: 2, HEN 4 [~ C]
(WeSt End) ‘?1‘ ,/,I | N\ .- =| ‘ .
G 7, | N - 52m
2 | 3, -"" Allot
4 | ‘(’ & Gdns
iFs N .
. hY 1
Brightwell-cum-Soxwell N ="
Ll
i =l > el
&) A
o ll =
f N
Site 9: 4 1 Y Path s
(Brightwell Street) i) >~
1 1=z,
F | Rogn Gd
/ -. !
i \Z!
+ r:
H
b
FBs l -
/g
g \\z Site 5: ;’ Site 4: X
: D
q‘/ 413 (Mackney Lane) %,  (SladeEnd) \§
NS |
/ 3 g . o)
!
/ AN ')
Mackney Court 48m N
N \w )
A
¥ | s~ 5 Y
O\ g (-, 7 Fir Tree &f K
A \Q Cottage Vi
oo e e 7
1% He N /
] ; T
i T
5 .
Y, Farm (N. :I'.S)
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright . .
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. OXFORDSHIRE Date drawn: 1_9/09/2016 ) Map centre:
Oxfordshire County Council. © Crown Copyright and database rights 2016. 100023343 COUNTY COUNCIL Drawn by: CJM easting. 458410, northing. 190620




CMDE7

ANNEX 4
SURVEY ID & LOCATION | DIRECTION | JOT€L TRAFFIC ﬁi;CENTILE AV ERAGE
Both 444 24 1 19.2
(1) West End Westbound 220 23.8 18.9
Eastbound 225 244 19.4
Both 363 25.3 21.1
g;iog‘]ﬁ"gg fg;egtr’een) Westbound | 178 25.4 21.2
Eastbound 185 25.2 21.1
Both 596 26.8 22.5
Eg;iog‘]f"g:ﬁer%e;a) Westbound | 326 25.6 21.7
Eastbound 270 28.3 23.5
Both 626 24 1 19.6
(4) Slade End Westbound 306 24.3 19.5
Eastbound 320 24 19.6
Both 215 25.7 20
Egs)/ I\gzgl:tr;egal_v?l?sﬁ) Southbound | 105 24.9 19.4
Northbound 110 27 1 20.6
Both 805 304 25.2
(6) High Road Westbound | 409 296 24.2
Eastbound 396 31.2 26.2
(7) Didcot Road Both 472 35.2 29.1

Page 39




CMDE7

Westbound | 238 36.9 30
Eastbound 234 33.8 28.2
Both 265 23 17.5
(8) Church Lane Southbound | 119 20.8 16.4
Northbound | 147 24 1 18.4
Both 426 251 20
(9) Brightwell Street Westbound | 220 25.6 20.7
Eastbound 206 24 4 19.3

Page 40




Agenda Iltem 8

Division(s): Woodstock

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 13 OCTOBER 2016

PROPOSED TRAFFIC CALMING AMENDMENTS - WOODSTOCK
ROAD, STONESFIELD

Report by Acting Director for Environment & Economy (Commercial)

Introduction

1. This report presents objections and comments received in the course of the
statutory consultation on the proposal to amend the existing traffic calming
feature on the Woodstock Road, at the eastern entrance to Stonesfield
village.

Background

2. The scheme is to facilitate a new vehicle access being proposed and funded
by a housing developer as a result of an approved residential development of
land adjacent to the Woodstock Road, located within the south-eastern corner
of Stonesfield.

3. The proposal for the amended traffic calming comprises of a speed cushion
being added to the southern side of the carriageway (adjacent to existing
build-out) and the removal of the kerbed build-out on the northern side of the
carriageway. The location of the proposal is shown at Annex 1, whilst the
technical details are available in the drawing provided by the developer at
Annex 2.

Consultation

4. The formal consultation on the proposals was carried out between 14 July and
12 August 2016. A public notice was advertised in the Oxford Times on 14
July and in the Witney & West Oxon Gazette on 20 July, notices were also
placed on the street in various locations within the vicinity of the scheme. An
email was sent to the statutory consultees, including; Thames Valley Police,
the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Parish & District Councils and
the relevant local County Councillors.

5. A total of 15 individual responses were received during the consultation
period. Objections were received from 10, accounting for two-thirds of those
who responded, and these — along with those supporting the proposals and
submitting other comments received as part of the consultation — are
summarised at Annex 3. Copies of all the responses received are available for
inspection in the Members’ Resource Centre.

Page 41



10.

Additionally a petition signed by approximately 50 local residents was
submitted calling for the rejection of the proposal and requesting modifications
to the scheme in order to deliver the following three objectives:

a) To slow traffic driving out of Stonesfield along the stretch of the Woodstock
Road from the War Memorial and Greenfield Road, and then on past the
new turning to the Charity Farm development.

b) To slow traffic driving into Stonesfield past the Charity Farm development
and along the Woodstock Road to the War Memorial.

c) To provide a safe passage for pedestrians out of the Charity Farm
development so that they can walk safely to the centre of the village and
children safely to school.

To deliver these objectives, the petition put forward the following possible
measures:

a) Traffic calming measures between the War Memorial and the
development, for example comprising pairs of speed cushions

b) The introduction of a 20mph speed limit

c) The provision of a mini roundabout at the new access with the
development.

d) The use of a full width hump rather than a speed cushion within the
proposed amended calming feature, and that this amended feature should
be relocated to the north east between the entrance of the development
and the access to North Farm; the latter would also be more appropriate
should further residential development to the north of the Woodstock Road
be approved.

e) The provision of a raised pedestrian crossing — potentially to be a formal
zebra crossing — to assist pedestrians cross the road and to further act as
a speed reducing feature.

f) The provision of a footway on the south side of the road between the
development and the War Memorial.

The Parish Council objected to the scheme, believing that what had been
previously agreed with the developer had been ignored and alternative
proposals had been put forward in its place.

Thames Valley Police had no objection to the proposals.

Objections and concerns

The grounds for the objections largely focus on concerns that the proposed
amendment to the traffic calming would not provide a sufficient control of
traffic speeds or provision for pedestrians and could — through the positioning
of the feature to the north east of the proposed access — lead to potential
conflict with turning traffic; other grounds included that the proposed street
light and additional signing required for the speed cushion would urbanise the
village, and that the remaining calming feature was quite close to an existing
property. The parish council also expressed broader concerns that the
proposals did not reflect their understanding of what had previously been
suggested, including the provision of a footway.

Page 42



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Concerns were also raised that speed cushions could potentially lead to
damage to vehicles, with particular emphasis on suspension and tyres, and
that from experience of other speed cushion schemes, that there was a
likelihood of maintenance problems in time on the road surfacing and the
speed cushion itself.

There were also concerns over the source of funding for the proposal,
believing that the County Council should not be liable for the scheme.

Response to objections and concerns

On the concerns over the effectiveness of the amended calming layout,
Department for Transport (DfT) advice on traffic calming states that road
humps (including speed cushions) are the most widely used form of traffic
calming device because they have proved to be effective at controlling speeds
and are generally applicable to most road layouts. The note goes on to outline
the following advantages of cushions; they are an effective speed control
device, they offer less discomfort than full width road humps to occupants of
large buses and commercial vehicles and they also cause less delay to fire
appliances and buses.

Oxfordshire has extensive experience of very similar calming measures in a
wide range of environments have showed good levels of speed reduction and
improved safety where at locations where there was a prior accident problem.

Similarly, such schemes have typically been well accepted by residents, with
only a very small number of instances of noise concerns being raised, mainly
in locations where houses are immediately adjacent to the features. Equally,
very few concerns have been raised over air quality or pollution or damage to
vehicles.

The concerns in relation to the siting of the build out in relation to the new
access are noted, but the positioning of vehicles passing through the calming
feature should not lead to conflict, with traffic travelling towards Woodstock
remaining on the north side of the road, and traffic heading into the village —
while it will have moved to the offside to pass through the build out — will then
be return to the nearside ahead of the access.

While concerns over urbanisation are noted, the addition of the speed cushion
and street light (and advance signing of the feature) will be offset by the
removal of one of the existing traffic calming build outs.

The concern that the remaining calming feature is close to existing
development is noted, but this clearly applies already.

Funding for the scheme is being provided by the developer as part of their

obligations, whilst any work undertaken by County Council Officers is as part
of their normal working day duties.

Page 43



20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

The contents of the petition are noted. It is clear that there is significant local
concern over existing traffic speeds on the Woodstock Road south west of the
current calming measures and demands for a footway on the southern verge
or pedestrian crossing to link the new development to the existing footway on
the opposite side. There could be no objection in principle to the provision of
the measures suggested subject to appropriate detailed designs being
prepared and subject to funding and the consideration of statutory
consultations that would apply. However their cost would be significant and it
is not considered that funding of such measures could reasonably be required
from the current development (comprising 37 houses) given the anticipated
level of traffic generation (and generation of walking trips into the village), and
also noting the absence of any reported injury accidents on the road in the
past 5-years.

It would therefore seem appropriate to consider the need for additional
measures in the context of any further development in the area. It is perhaps
worth noting that mindful of the grounds for objection cited in the individual
responses relating to the impact of road humps and speed cushions, and also
the concerns over the urbanisation of the village, the measures put forward in
the petition could well prove contentious for some residents.

The specific request in the petition for the consideration of a full width road
hump is noted, and it is accepted that this would very likely provide a stronger
control of speeds as compared to the speed cushion currently proposed. The
choice of a speed cushion in the current proposal reflected the fact that
features of this type are quite widely used in the county. They appear to be
effective in moderating speeds, but also avoid some of the potential issues
associated with full width humps for vehicles such as ambulances and buses.

It should be noted that in addition to the speed cushion, the current proposals
also include the provision of two vehicle activated signs to help moderate
speeds and the provision of a short length of footway on the southern verge
and dropped kerbs to link to the existing footway on the opposite side.

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives
The proposals will help facilitate the easier flow of motor traffic in the area,

including access to the new development, as well as helping to reduce the risk
of road traffic accidents.

Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)
Full funding for the proposal has been secured from the developer. The

appraisal of the proposals, consultation and preparation of all paperwork has
been undertaken by E&E officers as part of their normal duties.

Page 44



RECOMMENDATION
26. The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve

the implementation of proposal as advertised and described in the
report.

CHRIS McCARTHY
(Interim) Deputy Director of Environment & Economy (Commercial)

Background papers: Plan of proposed restrictions
Consultation responses

Contact Officers: David Tole 07920 084148

September 2016

Page 45



9% obed

OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT

ANNEX 1

Stonesfield
War Memorial

.

Build-out traffic calming
feature to be removed

=
North fe \\/).-
Farm -

'L

TN ,I;Ea ét\E\n
Delly.End )\, —New “~Ayorth

o LO(}:ATION (M ﬂ

A
S HENA
o IIVIAIN -
’ v, {
'\./\L__r-\
d >

.....

Site of residential
development

Speed cushion to be
added to build-out traffic
calming feature

ROMAN VILLA

VAN

~

/ (N.T.S)

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Oxfordshire County Council. © Crown Copyright and database rights 2016. 100023343

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

Date drawn: 11/07/2016
Drawn by: CJM

Map centre:
easting. 439606, northing. 217369




71-eobeg

Traffic Signs Manual - Chapfer 4: Clear Visibility Distance in advance of Junction at 30mph (st percentic) - 45.0m (either sidet)

[Gising sgn diag fepkiced |
wilh spoed cushion TSRG!
Diag 557.1 soe below.

TSRGD.
Diag: $57.1

[New dropped crossing and
Ibutt coloured tactie paving)

[Now el ighing
[65h0 Gowtytood et 1o (column subject 1o design)

TSRGD
Diog: 811
Diog:811.1

[Busing buid out and sgnage
broken oul and road surtace
{made good. Bxistng 10ad son

[Now spood cuion acdad]
1o oxsing b o

[ Ensting 30mph road

N

ANNEX 2

NOTES

2. Thisdrawing is 1o be read in conjunciion with he relevant
Avchitects/Engineer's diawings. specifications and COM.
documentation

been photo reduced or enkarged when copied. Work 1o Sgured

s 0r omissons 10 be reported 1o the engineer

sle. Any en

cloar it 19produced in black and white.

Where requied exsling road markings shall be temoved
mechanicall (nof usng hol compressed ar)

by Hycko blasting’or smir. Not 10 bo bumi oft.

as agree

1 grey to OCC ighting

spocification.

The VAS wilneed to be insiated in
locatons T son box il .50 3 sl post wilh G2a
prolecton systom and EPA complant mmum to Oxfordshiro

anerc

‘pecicalonand ol caal 1o be Graprds Bock- RALSO1

o158 pa
unmao Comociod 10 10 DO cut-ou 6 VAS hovktbo Rom
Wostco

J— 01110 0f s0Con 278 Works

dropped ciosing|
i bull colovred
icile paving

Vehice Activater
DOWN waming - 45m fron

ALED Soninchdng SLOW
oposed junction

A

P —

[ A

{markings extended
theough junction

[Non umeatod sgn

Vehicke Activate
[

" subject to desgn|™T

ed LED Sign including SLOW
OWN' waming - 43m kom proposed junction

02 No. et

Whito Ining koy

@ 'GIVE WAY r0ad marking
TSRG re diag 1023
Longih 375 %1240

be romoved by mechanical . move o 430 off vergo and|
s buring of ot pemict. | mminaled son) (uminated. yremove by
N \ Rogs diag81l | b g bl oo elaied. SROD Doy 0641 LOW| Hyd 0. |
\ {Keep left bolards o be in set for 30mph.
-~ repliced with Nu-v(m‘(luul;. R(wmnlnkxvnmm( Repared
\ 4=
\ - ~ -
8 A
W W
— _—
0 monSseen [ — —_— —
\ S K !
s |
\ i
| ewsioer
L igniing coumn

(® 'GIVEWAY LN road marking
TSRG o diag 1003
(k x300 gap wdih 200 spaced 300 apart

@

'LONGIUDNAL WARNNG LN foad marking
TSRG 10! diag
1000 ek 2000 G wh 100 x 2N s

®

Lane UNE road marking
TSRG rof diag 1009
100 widi

TSRGD
Diog:557.1

% Sgn diag repkaced |
speed.
Diog 557.1 500 bolow.

Proposed Tralﬁc Calming

OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL STREET LIGHTING SPECIFICATIONS

‘Column 5m ‘Abacus’ tuoular st Raiso & Lowor colmn (BS EN 40) EN10210

1 POBSAT.

Brackot Pmmammm
Lantem ighng NXT series smal - Green RAL 6013
Lavemt W1 o7 S LRI Gt
Lamp 12 WattLED 525mA 4000K Cokour tengerature
ol ama e ok S st t 5/ 16 i
Presetto dm to 50% between 10:00pm o 6

Column finsh - EPA Comlant
‘Specification.

193).
10a cean degreased, ghty ebraced dy sufece.

| orawm| chica |
Fov | ™™ £ Comments

Section 278 Works

1#Cost i
o 21, Oyt ock oo O Epon 1, 070 s S, — H
iman iy i hicoess 10 et i
24Coat 1m0 et ot Charity Farm, F
Beae B G reries o . ushAdess . i
‘Spray. Minimum Dry Fim Thickness 200 mi Stonesfield, i
3¢Coat.  Extemal overall Oxon 5
spoc ) 3
200 - line, Conventional Spray, Minimum Dry Film Thickness 75 microns. £
eson =

1 plabi ATD RIW i
dopending on sto conions. [ H

H Temcaspestson | 24/11/2015 PRELIMINARY
" L i
Manufacurerspo o cammencement f work s zam |5
H] 1:250 @ A ¥
Convoctor 8
7) A colomas 10 50 numbered wo mebes fom grourd evel :

8 E
Regora i
9) Tho"A lo efrorce numba whih o he owig, o o cuced 1 l corresoondence §
10) Notes ar 1o beplanted wit ten metesof & colmn H
") i
3 i
‘handing / transportation damage. g
‘Street Lighting to be adopted by R RAWING N N
‘OXFORDSHRE COUNTY COUNCL 15-1939 103 P07




gt abed

ANNEX 3

RESPONDENT

SUMMARISED COMMENTS

(1) Thames Valley
Police

No objection.

(2) Local County
Councillor

No comments received.

(3) Parish Council

Objects — with the following comments:

» Councillors favoured a full width road hump with associated narrowing of the road and also wanted a
VAS system in place.

» The preferred location was as far north as practical bearing in mind the undulations of the road. We
asked for it to be moved so that it was not outside a resident’s house and because it was felt further
north would be safer.

= We also requested that a pavement be introduced on the same side of the road as the new build.

= Councillors discussed and agreed this with the developer before submission and note that the plan
being consulted on is not the one they were led to believe would be submitted.

(4) Resident,
(Woodstock Road,
Stonesfield)

No objection — but has the following comments:

= Do not have any objection to the proposals but strongly object to the funding of these changes by the
council, the developers should be liable for the cost.

(5) Resident,
(Church Fields,
Stonesfield)

Supports — with the following comments:




61 abed

Would like to see the speed cushion removed as it is an eyesore and is always being damaged by
larger vehicles.

(6) Resident,
(Woodstock Road,
Stonesfield)

Objects — with the following comments:

Single cushion is not sufficient to slow down traffic as vehicle tyres can go either side, whilst most will
simply brake just before and then accelerate after it.

Current chicane is no deterrent and it doesn’t slow down motorbikes and lorry drivers, additional traffic
calming is required along the length of Woodstock Road.

Suitable alternatively would be a mini roundabout by the entrance to the new development or at the
junction with Greenfield Road.

Also narrowing of the road could be an option with only one car able to pass at the time.

(7) Resident
(Brook Lane,
Witney)

Objects — with the following comments:

The new access to the Development should never have been approved.

The access could be moved 11 metres to the west towards Stonesfield to be further away from the
existing traffic calming chicane.

The traffic calming obstruction on the Northern side of the road could be moved to the east towards
Woodstock. This would replicate the existing chicane but slightly further towards Woodstock.

The proposal will not create traffic calming and therefore should not be considered as a safe calming
measure.

Any works to maintain safety traffic calming measures should be paid for by the developer.

(8) Resident,
(Busby Close,
Witney)

Objects — with the following comments:

Speed cushions could potentially lead to damage to cars, including to the suspension and tyres.




0G abed

(9) Resident,
(unknown,
online response)

Objects — with the following comments:

Feels the proposals are an unnecessary change to the highway as there is no need for a speed
cushion. They do nothing but damage standard vehicles and deteriorate the road around it, whilst
commercial vehicles can pass over them.

Chicane is fine but needs to allow for larger farm vehicles and buses.

Feels that there is no need for textbook theoretical solutions in response to every new development,
dealing with problems that don’t currently exist.

Rather, having a sense of rural community will lead to more considerate driving, rather than the clutter
of signs, the street furniture should be kept to a minimum. The proposal will lead the site and
Stonesfield to become more urban.

(10) Resident,
(Prospect Close,
Witney)

Objects — with the following comments::

After negotiating the chicane it is possible for drivers to reach 50/60mph prior to reaching the War
Memorial/ Prospect Close junction.

Feels that the removal of the northern most build out and the addition of a speed cushion will only
make the situation worse.

The speed cushion needs to cover the full width of the northern most lane and a further full two lane
cushion is required further west down the road, prior to the War Memorial.

Additionally the proposed new signage when exiting the road from the development will further restrict
the view of oncoming traffic from the East.

Feels that this location is a prime crossing point, especially for school children.

(11) Resident,
(Cockshoot Close,
Witney)

Objects — with the following comments::

The priorities for traffic turning right out of the new housing development are dangerously confusing.
While traffic turning right has to give way to traffic passing on the main road, once it has pulled across
it then has priority over traffic approaching from the right.




|G ebed

This could cause confusion, and could result in a potentially dangerous collision, or at least an
embarrassing confrontation in the middle of the zone between the speed cushions, if the vehicle
driving towards the village was unable to stop after first noticing the vehicle turning right out of the
development.

This scenario is made more likely by the sightlines, as a driver turning right out of the development
might not see a vehicle approaching from Woodstock at some speed, before it is too late.

| would not like to be a resident of this new housing area having to turn right towards Woodstock on a
regular basis.

(12) Resident,
(Laughton Hill,
Stonesfield)

Objects — with the following comments::

The existing style of chicane is simple and sufficient enough speeding deterrent, the addition of speed
cushions will not deter the 'very brave' and is also an unwelcome invasion into the rural environment.
The extra street signs required by 'speed cushions' further detract from the rural nature of the village.
The village has voted on more than one occasion against having street lights on the grounds of light
pollution and spoiling a rural environment. The introduction by virtue of the traffic calming is a 'back
door' way of bypassing this.

(13) Resident,
(Woodstock Road,
Stonesfield)

Objects — with the following comments::

Welcomes the VAS, but feel the overall proposals are unsatisfactory.

Feels that removing the existing traffic calming feature will seriously reduce the deterrent to speeding
motorists.

Believes that a full width speed hump would be more effective that the cushion arrangement that is
being proposed (although understands this may affect emergency vehicles).

An extra traffic calming feature on the southern side of the new access is necessary, in order to
negate speeding of vehicles on the exit of the village.

Would like to see some form of ‘village gateway’ feature installed as part of the scheme to provide
additional calming.




2G abed

(14) Resident,
(Combe Road,
Stonesfield)

Objects — with the following comments::

Speed bumps are not effective, just cause annoyance to every driver speeding or not. They cause
unnecessary noise and damage to cars.

(15) Resident,
(Woodstock Road,
Stonesfield)

No objection — but has the following comments:

The introduction of vehicle activated signs would be a very positive step towards traffic speed
reduction on the Woodstock Road, although it would be more advantageous and appropriate to locate
them midway between the new cushion and the Greenfield Road junction.

Additional signage warning motorists of pedestrians potentially crossing near to the new access to the
development would also be useful.

(16) Resident,
(Woodstock Road,
Stonesfield)

No objection — but has the following comments:

The need for traffic calming along the Woodstock Road is clear; however the proposal does not
address certain issues.

Speeds also need to be reduced for vehicles exiting the village as cars often accelerate as soon as
they complete the turn where Combe Road joins Woodstock Road.

Once vehicles have negotiated the existing chicane they speed up rapidly as they approach the
Combe Road junction.

The existing chicane is right at the junction with the access road into the new development, it should
be relocated further out of the village so that inbound traffic is slowed when reaching the new junction.
Feels there is a need for a pedestrian crossing near the new junction to cater for the new foot traffic
which will be created by the new development.

The proposed Vehicle Activated LED speed limit signs should be placed a) at the War Memorial, and
b) at the new chicane.

Feels that the noise generated when vehicles go over speed humps would be too intrusive to justify
any benefit they may provide.




Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



Agenda ltem 9

Division(s): Chipping Norton

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 13 OCTOBER 2016

PROPOSED 30MPH SPEED LIMIT EXTENSION - A361 BURFORD
ROAD, CHIPPING NORTON

Report by Deputy Director of Environment & Economy (Commercial)

Introduction

1. This report presents objections and comments received in the course of the
statutory consultation on the proposal to extend the 30mph limit on the A361
Burford Road, southwards from its current terminal point to replace part of the
existing 40mph speed limit.

Background

2. The current 40mph speed limit was introduced in 2011 as part of a
comprehensive review of speed limits on the County’s A and B roads,
applying the then current Department for Transport (DfT) guidelines on setting
local speed limits; this review included extensive local consultation, and was
overseen by an advisory group comprising County Councillors and
representatives of the police traffic management team.

3. The proposed amendment to the speed limit here is being proposed for road
safety reasons as a result of the residential development of land adjacent to
the A361 Burford Road, at the southern end of Chipping Norton which will
create a new junction on the A361. The location and detail of these proposals
is shown at Annex 1.

Consultation

4. The formal consultation on the proposals was carried out between 28 January
and 11 March 2016. A public notice was advertised in the Oxford Times on 28
January and an email sent to statutory consultees, including Thames Valley
Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Town & District
Councils and the relevant local County Councillors.

5. A total of 10 responses were received during the consultation period.
Objections were received from approximately one third of those who
responded, and these — along with those supporting the proposals and other
comments received as part of the consultation — are summarised at Annex 2.
Copies of all the responses received are available for inspection in the
Members’ Resource Centre.

6. Thames Valley Police had no objection, but questioned the potential to reduce
both the 30mph & 40mph speed limits marginally.

Page 55



10.

11.

12.

CMDE9

Councillor Hibbert-Biles (the local Member for Chipping Norton) had no
objection to the proposals.

Objections and concerns

The objections were on the grounds that the opportunity should be taken to
extend the 30mph to include the access to the Greystones leisure complex
(thereby wholly replacing the current 40mph limit with a 30mph limit), due to
the large number of users of the complex including pedestrians and children;
this was also requested by other respondents supporting the proposal but not
formally expressing an objection.

One respondent also suggested that in addition to the above extension of the
30mph limit, a 40mph limit should then be introduced further to the south for a
similar distance (around 500 metres).

Response to objections and concerns

The police response is noted; in respect of their suggested slight adjustment
to length of the 30mph limit, it is considered that on balance the current
proposals best reflect the need to safely accommodate the proposed new
junction, while still leaving a residual length of a ‘buffer 40mph speed limit
which is close to the minimum length of speed limit recommended in the DfT
guidelines.

The concerns over the safety of users of the Greystones Leisure Centre cited
in the representations for the 30mph limit to be extended to include the
access to the centre are noted. Since the speed limit review completed in
2011 which led to the current 40mph speed limit being introduced (in place of
the national speed limit of 60mph), the DfT guidelines on setting speed limits
have been amended. The current guidance (issued in 2013) states that
40mph speed limits are generally appropriate ‘on the outskirts of urban areas,
where there is little development. They should have good width and layout,
parking and waiting restrictions in operation and buildings set back from the
road. These roads should wherever possible cater for the needs of non-
motorised road users through segregation of road space, and have adequate
footways and crossing places’.

It is accepted that the length of the road that would remain 40mph under the
current proposals does not fully reflect the above guidance, in that for
example there is occasional extensive parking along the road associated with
sports activities in the leisure complex, and there are no formal crossing
points for pedestrians along it. However, in most other respects, a 40mph
speed limit here would appear to be compatible with the guidance, taking
account of the very rural aspect of the road, and it would appear highly likely
that if the speed limit were to be reduced to 30mph, it would be subject to very
significant abuse, and that police resources for enforcement here would in
practice be very limited.

Page 56



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

CMDE9

In response to the road safety concerns there has been one reported injury
accident in the vicinity of the proposals during the last 5 years; the
circumstances of the incident are not considered to be relevant to the
proposals or to the concerns over the access arrangements for the leisure
area.

It should be noted that the approved plans for the access into the new
development does include the provision of a pedestrian island south of the

access but within the proposed 30mph limit, and a new footway link south to
the Leisure Centre access will be provided on the east side of the road.

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives

The proposals would help to support housing growth and economic vitality.
Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)

Full funding for the proposal has been secured from the developer. The
appraisal of the proposals, consultation and preparation of all paperwork has
been undertaken by E&E officers as part of their normal duties.
RECOMMENDATION

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve
the implementation of the proposal as advertised.

CHRIS McCARTHY
(Interim) Deputy Director of Environment & Economy (Commercial)

Background papers: Plan of proposed restrictions

Consultation responses

Contact Officers: David Tole 07920 084148

September 2016

Page 57



3G obed

ANNEX 1

/ |
G NORTON CP| |

PROPOSED 30MPH SPEED LIMIT - A361 BURFORD ROAD OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT

Y

ST TYUTToTT

School

Y)
f> Y ‘.'0,0, ST TN M\:—'LS 2 7
‘O, X ‘i;‘*j‘r\*»‘? f'\'/— N » _ A —931‘(' / ‘! ""‘;\
‘Way Ce}y ; I + ‘i@
£ I:e ," l ;Aus\[/‘":lw T
Lommon S “hdiek AWr Twr
e % CHIPPING
b PG 275NORTON
sEMll T

y—A SN "
9L T IXJIOldner Ho
_*'SITE LOCATION B >

Greystone

Greystone
{Coun Offs)

. Approximate location of access
= Proposed 30mph speed limit to new residential development

P==="""""Chipping Norton
{ Leisure Bowls Club

Existing 30mph speed limit
Centre

(to remain)
Existing 40mph speed limit
(to remain)

/\

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright . .
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. OXFORDSHIRE Date drawn: 1_2/01/2016 ) Map centre:
Oxfordshire County Council. © Crown Copyright and database rights 2016. 100023343 COUNTY COUNCIL Drawn by: CJM easting. 431640, northing. 226180




65 abed

ANNEX 2

RESPONDENT

SUMMARISED COMMENTS

(1) Thames Valley
Police

No objection — but has the following comments:

» Understand the principle of extending the limit and justification but question the distance of the
extension, potential to reduce both the 30mph & 40mph sped limits marginally.

(2) Local County
Councillor

No objection.

(3) Email response
(unknown)

Objects — with the following comments:

= When the Greystones Leisure complex is in use, there is a great deal of traffic entering and leaving
the site, with cars also parked on both sides of the road. The complex is well used by children and
this is likely to increase with the new housing under construction and planned,

» |t seems logical to take the opportunity to move the 30mph limit beyond the entrances to Greystones.

(4) Resident,
(Distons Lane,
Chipping Norton)

Supports — with the following comments::

= Definitely support BUT | don't think the 30 mph limit is going far enough,

» The Greystones Leisure complex houses an extremely busy rugby club / bowls club / scouts, all
coming out of the exit and the A361 does go up an incline towards Burford with a restriction of
oncoming traffic line of sight.

» This is especially bad when there is an event on in Greystones area with cars parked on the verge
restricting views in all directions.




09 abed

CMDE9

(5) Resident,
(Middle Row,
Chipping Norton)

Objects — with the following comments:

= The 30mph speed limit should start further back past the Rugby & Bowls Club to increase the safety of
an area that is incredibly busy with vehicles and young people at the weekends.

(6) Resident/Member of

Town Council,
(Burford Road,
Chipping Norton)

Supports — with the following comments::

= Feel the 30mph limit should be extended to at least the current start of the 40mph limit and that the
40mph limit be extended southwards by a similar amount,

= Chipping Norton Town Council is also aware that there is likely to be further residential development
south of the town adjacent to the current development.

(7) Resident,
(West Street,
Chipping Norton)

Supports — with the following comments::

= Would like to see the 30mph limit extended to a point south of the entrances to the rugby club and
Greystones, in effect replacing the existing 40mph limit.

(8) Resident,
(West Street,
Chipping Norton)

Objects — with the following comments:

» Feels the proposed extension is too limited, the entrances to Greystones complex are heavily used by
both adults and children using all forms of transport, (including pedestrians).
» For safety reasons the 30mph limit should be extended beyond the Rugby Club entrance.

(9) Resident,
(New Street,
Chipping Norton)

Supports — with the following comments::

= Would be better to extend the 30mph limit beyond the entrance to Greystones due to the heavy
vehicular and pedestrian activity, especially on match and practice days.




19 abed

CMDE9

(10) Resident,
(New Street,
Chipping Norton)

Supports — with the following comments::

= Support the proposed limit but would ask that it is extended further along the A361 to go past the
entrance to the Leisure Centre and Rugby Club. This is an area that is frequented by young people - a
slower speed limit here would be a great idea for safety.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



Agenda ltem 10

Division(s): All

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 14 OCTOBER 2016

OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL INTERNAL ENERGY STRATEGY
2015-2020

Report by the Acting Director for Environment and Economy

Introduction

1. Oxfordshire County Council spends around £7 million on the energy needed
for its corporate estate and activities. Energy costs are forecast to rise at
around 4% per year creating a financial pressure if these costs are not
properly managed.

2. Our energy use results in the emission of around 20,000 tonnes of
greenhouse gases each year. Oxfordshire County Council has a commitment
under Oxfordshire 2030; The Sustainable Communities Strategy to reduce
emissions at an average of 3% year on year.

3. The Oxfordshire County Council Internal Energy Strategy 2015-2020 (Annex
1) sets a framework in which to manage costs and carbon emissions across
the organisation. It was presented to County Council Management Team on
10 August 2016.

Exempt Information

4. The Energy Strategy does not contain any information considered to be
exempt.

Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy 2015-2020

Objectives

5. This strategy sets a framework for managing energy under the council’s direct
financial control — corporate building energy, street lighting, and travel
(business mileage and fleet).

6. It sets the following three objectives:

. Ensure corporate energy costs do not exceed 2014/15 levels by
reducing our energy use and purchasing energy effectively.

o Make use of renewables and innovative new technologies where
economically viable to reduce risk of supply, reduce costs and generate
income.

o Reduce greenhouse gas emissions from our properties and activities by

3% year on year, on average, in line with the Oxfordshire 2030
Sustainable Community Strategy commitment.

Page 63



CMDE10

Principles

7.

The Strategy adopts the principles of ISO 50001, the international standard for
energy management systems, and provides the framework to embed energy
management good practice across our everyday activities leading to continual
improvement and helping us to reduce energy demand, manage costs and
reduce emissions.

The strategy identifies a number of principles to follow in managing our energy
use:

i. We will use the energy hierarchy to prioritise activities that save
energy at the lowest cost, as well as maximise opportunities for energy
efficiency and the generation of energy from renewable sources;

il We will fund activities through an invest to save approach - investing
capital and capital finance to save a larger amount of revenue in coming
years - making use of external funding where possible and
advantageous;

iii. We will make use of our organisational scale to maximise the
opportunities to reduce costs both through the way we procure energy
and how we pay bills;

iv. We will ensure the whole life cycle energy impact of the activities we
undertake and of the products and services we purchase is taken into
consideration within our procurement processes;

V. We will continue working with our current partners, and explore new
partnerships where there is a clear benefit to the council and the
opportunity to lever additional economic and community benefit.

Vi. We will work with colleagues across the organisation to identify projects
in our three key areas of energy spend: street lighting; buildings and
other assets; and travel.

Links to other plans and strategies

9.

The energy strategy has cross-cutting links to a number of other plans and
programmes:

Asset Utilisation Programme: The Council is looking to optimise and reduce
the building footprint it occupies engaging with a One Public Estate approach.
To help enable this transition it has undertaken a major programme to move
staff to a more “agile” and flexible style of working.

Agile working: Opportunities offered via Agile working for virtual meetings,
telephone and video-conferencing, working from locations closer to home are
likely to have a positive impact on our mileage and emissions, helping us to
change the way we work. This strategy can help to measure positive trends
and impacts from such programmes.

Strategic Economic Plan: The vision for Oxfordshire is to be a vibrant,
sustainable, inclusive, world leading economy, driven by innovation, enterprise

Page 64



CMDE10

and research excellence. The importance of climate change is recognised in
the SEP both as a long term threat to the economy and as a business
opportunity. Low carbon sectors account for about 7% of the economy.
Oxfordshire is considered well placed to deliver innovative solutions to support
a global shift to a low carbon economy. This strategy does not seek to address
wider county emissions and strategies, but it does enable Oxfordshire County
Council to ‘get its own house in order and encourage innovation, external
funding, and positive action on our own estate and across our activities. The
current refresh highlighted the need for a county wide carbon strategy which
may emerge in the final document as a commitment.

Local Transport Plan 4: Supporting the transition to a low carbon future is one
of five key goals set out in Connecting Oxfordshire. As well as being the
Transport Authority, the County Council also spends £2 million to meet the
cost of travelling 4.5 million miles to deliver our own services. Our travel
activities generate 11% of our own greenhouse gas emissions. This strategy
will help the county council to measure and monitor our own transport use,
seek ways to reduce our costs and impacts, and support bids for investment in
innovative projects on our own estate such as Park and Rides.

Streetlighting strategy/policy: The council has undertaken a number of energy
management trials and smaller scale roll outs of LED technology and dimming
that has enabled it to keep energy consumption constant in this area in the
face of a growing asset base. Significant further investment and revised policy
will be needed to offset the impact of increased development and energy costs
in future years. Cabinet will be asked to agree a new streetlighting policy in
Autumn 2016. A new maintenance contract will then be let. Streetlighting and
energy strategy have made an initial high level assessment of the opportunity
for LEDs and will be proposing building this into a full business case through
the commercial services board.

Key Issues

Energy within a changing organisation

10.The council is going through a period of unprecedented change in the scope

11.

and model of its operations. In the future the council may change in size, scale
and scope of functions. There are a number of cross-departmental change
programmes already in operation across the organisation set to transform the
way we work such as digitisation and agile working.

Energy management does not require a new programme; it is an activity
already happening across our estate. This strategy has been developed to
agree principles that will help identify opportunities, prioritise action, ensure
that long term revenue costs of decisions are weighed up against capital
spend, embed energy management within existing programmes where
appropriate, and monitor improvement.

12.Key assets such as streetlighting will continue to exist whatever the

organisation looks like, and staff will continue to need to travel to deliver

Page 65



CMDE10

services and undertake functions. The energy strategy is designed to sit
alongside other key programmes such as Asset Utilisation Programme,
helping to prioritise spend where it is most cost-effective on a large but rapidly
changing estate.

Broader scope

13.A recent report commissioned by the County Council and the Oxfordshire
Local Enterprise Partnership highlights the emissions made by different
sectors of the economy, which amounted to 6,134 kT CO2 in 2008 (the
baseline year for monitoring against the Oxfordshire 2030 commitment). The
transport, residential and commercial properties are particularly high
contributors, along with the public sector. Oxfordshire County Council’s
greenhouse gas emissions totalled around 0.5% of broader county emissions.

14. The scope to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions of other sectors in
Oxfordshire falls outside the scope of this strategy, but highlights an important
leadership role, and the importance of continuing to work in partnership with
others on the transition to low carbon economy. The Local Enterprise
Partnership, Growth Board, Oxfordshire Partnership and Low Carbon Oxford
all have a role in encouraging broader action. Initiatives such as OxFutures (a
£15million community energy programme funded via the EU) and OLEV
(Oxfordshire Low Emission Vehicles) are both good examples of multi-partner
projects that have delivered action and clear benefits for the county

\ Budgetary implications

15.The strategy sets out the council’s exposure to rising energy costs under a
“business as usual” scenario.

16. The strategy proposes that the council prioritises activities that save energy at
the lowest cost to the organisation (Section 5.3), producing annual action
plans to identify where savings can be made.

17.Projects and programmes would continue to be brought forward via normal
decision-making processes, as set out in the Commercial Operating Model,
with each project setting out the invest-to-save business case and financial
case to ensure cost-effectiveness to the organisation.

18.Annual reporting will identify progress against the energy strategy objectives
and through this process the objectives can also be kept under review.

Equalities implications

19.Implementation of this strategy is not likely to disadvantage any particular
groups. The impact on staff and customers of individual projects will be
evaluated as part of the normal decision-making process.

Risk Management

Page 66



CMDE10

20.The key risk evaluated is the predicted rise in energy prices.

21.Financial risks have been evaluated that the objectives are deliverable in the
short to mid-term and cost-effective to the organisation.

Communications

22.Actions in strategy that relate to specific service areas have been formed
collaboratively with relevant staff members.

23.County council consultees include property, streetlighting, ICT, procurement &
finance, transport and innovation, infrastructure planning, transformation. In
addition the team have collaborated with our property partners, Carillion.

24_A paper was also taken to the Schools Forum Traded Services in February
2014 outlining the council’s reduction in direct support for schools with energy
efficiency initiatives.

Governance and review

25.CCMT has agreed to sponsor the strategy reflecting the cross-organisational
nature of the costs.

26.At its meeting in August 2016, CCMT recommended that the Energy Strategy
now be taken forward through the delegated decision process for final sign off.

RECOMMENDATION
27 The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to support the objectives and
principles set out in the Energy Strategy document.
BEV HINDLE
ACTING DIRECTOR FOR ENVIRONMENT AND ECONOMY
Background papers: Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy 2015-2020

Contact Officer: Victoria Fletcher, Spatial Infra. Planning Resource Manager

October 2016

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

/Local government is operating in a period of unprecedented change and\
financial pressure.

Managing the energy intensity of our activities is an important part of
‘good housekeeping’, helping us reduce operating costs to protect front
line services and to meet our public commitments to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions.

\_ J

Executive Summary

In 2014/15 we spent just over £7 million on energy for our corporate buildings and
our activities such as running street lighting and other illuminated street furniture, as
well as moving our staff around the county. Our energy use resulted in the emission
of more than 26,000 tonnes of greenhouse gases.

Whist our energy cost in 2014/15 was 1% less than in 2013/14 and almost 20% less
than in 2010/11, continuing our current rate of energy use (business as usual) could
see costs rise to £9 million per year by 2019/20 (creating an aggregate £5.5 million
pressure over the next five years) primarily due to an increase in the cost of fuel.

This strategy provides a framework to manage energy use in all areas across our
estate and activities and meet our objectives to:

> Ensure corporate energy costs do not exceed 2014/15 levels by reducing our
energy use and purchasing energy effectively.

> Make use of renewable technologies to reduce risk of supply, reduce costs
and generate income.

> Reduce greenhouse gas emissions from our buildings and activities by 3%
year on year, on average, in line with the Oxfordshire 2030 Sustainable
Community Strategy commitment.

We will deliver this strategy through a detailed annual delivery plan that sets out the
projects necessary to meet our carbon targets and cost objectives.

Page 1 of 17
Page 69



Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

Contents

Executive SUMMANY .........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e
1 The Energy Challenge ...
1. GOS8 i
1.2 EMISSIONS...coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e

a b~ WODN

5.3 OUrapproach ...
5.3.1  Street lighting.........ccooiiiiiiiii e,
5.3.2 Buildings and @ssets............cceevviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee
5.3.3  Travel.ooee e
5.3.4  SChOOIS.....cooiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeee e

5.4  Governance and rEVIEW ...........ccuuuuuiiieeeeeeeeeiiiiiaaaeeeeeeeeeenennnnnns

OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to R@fe A@ust 2016

Meeting the challenge ...
Underpinning our existing WOrkK ...........cooiviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeece e
Partnerships and Innovation ...
The Energy Strategy, 2015 t0 2020 ..........uuvuimiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiees
5.1 ODbBJECHVES ..eniie e
ST o o] o 1= U

Page 2 of 17



Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

1 The Energy Challenge

1.1 Costs

In 2014/15 we spent just under £7 million on the energy needed to run our
corporate buildings and activities such as street lighting and moving our staff around
the County’”.

Whilst total expenditure in 2014/15 was 1% less than in 2013/14, rising fuel costs®
and other challenges (such as the need for additional street lighting in areas of new
housing development) mean that even if existing activity remains constant, the
amount we spend will increase to an estimated £9 million per year by 2019/20.

Business as usual could add an aggregate £5.5 million to our fuel bills over the
next five years?.

£10 -
E AMNMNUAL ENERGY COST
= g £9 million
201920
£8 Business as usual
+ £5.5 million
£7 Total additional cost over5 years
2014/15 energy costs £7 million
£6 2014/15
£5
£4
/—/
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019,20

Source: Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy Team, 2015

! Oxfordshire County Council Energy Data, 2015

2 Whilst energy prices are volatile (and there has been some fall in wholesale pricing in the last year),
the Department of Energy and Climate Change is forecasting positive inflation over the next 5 years
of around 3% for gas and 5% for electricity. Carbon Trust has supported OCCs use of average 4%
inflation.

OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to 2(Rggaugyst 2016 Page 3 of 17



Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

1.2 Emissions

In the same year, 2014/15, our energy use resulted in the emission of 26,368
tonnes of greenhouse gases (CO; equivalent).

Oxfordshire 2030: the Sustainable Community Strategy for Oxfordshire sets
“Protecting the environment and responding to Climate Change” as one of four
priorities for the County, with a target to halve emissions of carbon dioxide by 2030
compared against 2008 levels.

This public commitment is in line with targets embedded in the national Climate
Change Act 2008 which requires the Government to reduce emissions in the UK by
at least 34% by 2020 and 80% by 2050, from 1990 levels.

To support the Oxfordshire 2030 priority the County Council has committed to a 3%
year on year decrease in greenhouse gas emissions (using 2010/11 as a baseline)
from its own estate under the Climate Local initiative®> and through Low Carbon
Oxford.

Emissions in 2014/15 were 23% less than in 2010/11. This is an average reduction
of almost 6% per year, meaning we are currently meeting this target. Continuing
business as usual is likely to see our emissions increase due to the demand for
additional street lighting in areas of new development around the county (emissions
from this area are forecast to increase by around 1% annually).

To stay on track, we will need to reduce our emissions by a total of 3,500 tonnes
CO2e by 2020 compared with those in 2014/15 (an average of 700 tonnes per year).

Greenhouse gas emissions from Oxfordshire County Council estate to 2030

30,000 - 2010/11 baseline

(27,758 tonnes CO2e
Energy Strategy
25,000 - 2015 to 2020
-
-
26,368
20,000 - tonnes CO2e,
in 2014/15 22,412
tonnes CO2e,
15,000 - in 2019/20
10,000 - A
2030 target
13,820
5,000 -
tonnes CO2e
0 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1

o — o~ o™ <t n (e} ~ (e0] [e)} o — o ™M < n (o} ™~ 0 [e)} o

— — — — — — — — — — o o (o] o o~ o~ (o] o o o (92]

o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o

(o] (a\] (g\] o (o] (a\] (g\] o o (o] (g\] (g\] o (o] (a\] (g\] o (o] (o] (g\] (o}

Source: Oxfordshire County Council Greenhouse Gas reports and Energy Review, 2015

® The District and City Councils have also adopted this target.

OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to Rafe ARust 2016 Page 4 of 17



Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

Global agreements, local targets

The UK, along with 174 other countries, is a signatory to the 2015 Paris Agreement.
Governments have agreed a long-term goal of keeping the increase in global
average temperature to well below 2°C above pre-industrial levels, and are legally
bound to ‘pursue domestic mitigation measures’.

The UK’s Climate Change Act, 2008 commits to reduce national emissions by at
least 80% of 1990 levels by 2050, and by 34% by 2020. Local authorities are seen
to have a key role in meeting this target®.

Oxfordshire County Council reports its emissions on an annual basis to the
government. Our local commitment to reduce our own emissions by 3% per year is in
line with the national target.

Meeting the target: carrots and sticks

National government currently encourages organisations to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions using measures such as access to special interest free loans (Salix
funding). The council has made use of this funding to implement a significant
number of projects such as installation of energy efficient lighting.

All large businesses and public sector organisations are taxed on greenhouse gas
emissions through the Climate Change Levy. In 2014/15 the levy amounted to
£222,470 for Oxfordshire County Council, however this price is set to increase.
Changes announced by the Government in Spring 2016 mean that we could expect
to pay £342,000 in 2019/20, an increase of £120k.

Other ‘carrot’ or ‘stick’ measures could be introduced in the future by national
governments to help them achieve commitments to the Paris Agreement.

*2013 Memorandum of Understanding between the Department for Energy and
Climate Change and the Local Government Association

OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to 2(Rggeug8st 2016 Page 5 of 17




Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

2 Meeting the challenge

Taking 2014/15 as our baseline, we can manage our energy costs and reduce
associated emissions by:

e reducing our energy demand (including the need to travel);
e increasing our energy efficiency and

e generating our own energy and exploring opportunities offered by new
technologies.

Systematically managing our energy use following the principles set out in the
international standard, ISO 50001, will ensure that energy reduction behaviours can
be embedded across the organisation leading to continual improvement and helping
us to reduce energy demand, manage costs and reduce emissions.

The Energy Strategy to 2020 sets out how we will do this.

Energy costs by use, 2014/15

OCC fleet,
£520,550
7%

Emissions by source, 2014/15

Buildings,

Corporate
buildings,
£1.7M
23%

Highways,
£2.9M
42%

6,660T,
29%

Highways,

13,623 T,
60%

Business
Business travel,
travel, 1,409 T
£1.9M 6%
28% \_occ Fleet,
1,225 T
5%
Source: OCC Annual Energy Review, 2015
OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to R@fle Aust 2016 Page 6 of 17




Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

3 Underpinning our existing work

The Energy Strategy supports a number of existing strategies and programmes.

i) Asset Utilisation Programme

The Asset Utilisation Programme (AUP) aims ﬂ ile working: reducing costs anh
to transform the way we work to make best use 9 9: 9

. : emissions
of technology, property, and time. This
includes exploring opportunities for colocation Laptops typically use 85 per cent
with the District and City Councils as well as less electricity over a year than
the wider public sector in a move to “One desktop PCs.*

Public Estate”.

Opportunities offered via Agile working (a
cornerstone of the AUP programme) for

Swapping our desktops for laptops
not only makes it easier to work from
different locations but will help reduce

virtual meetings, telephone and video- our energy costs and emissions.
conferencing, working from locations closer “Source: Enerav Savina Trust
to home are likely to have a positive impact \ uree: 9 g j

on our mileage and emissions.

The Energy Strategy will support AUP by embedding the principles of sound energy
management to reduce our energy demand and increase energy efficiency in our
buildings. It will also help to measure the positive trends and impacts from such
programmes.

i) Connecting Oxfordshire

Supporting the transition to a low carbon future is one of five key goals set out in
Connecting Oxfordshire, Oxfordshire County Council’s Local Transport Plan 4.

As well as being the Transport Authority, the County Council spends £2 million to
meet the cost of travelling 4.5 million miles to deliver services. This travel generates
11% of our own greenhouse gas emissions. The Energy Strategy will help the
council to measure and monitor our own transport use, seek ways to reduce our
costs and impacts and support bids for investment in innovative projects on our own
estate such as Park and Rides.

iii) Strategic Economic Plan

The vision for Oxfordshire is to be a vibrant, sustainable, inclusive, world leading
economy, driven by innovation, enterprise and research excellence. The importance
of climate change is recognised in the SEP both as a long term threat to the
economy and as a business opportunity. Low carbon sectors currently account for
about 7% of the economy, and Oxfordshire is considered well placed to deliver
innovative solutions to support a global shift to a low carbon economy.

This strategy does not seek to address wider county emissions and strategies, but it
does enable Oxfordshire County Council to ‘get its own house in order and
encourage innovation, external funding, and positive action on our own estate and
across our activities.

OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to 2(Rggeuggst 2016 Page 7 of 17



Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

iv)  Smart Cities

The Innovation & Research team drives the Smart Oxford Agenda to enable Oxford
and Oxfordshire to become the test bed for new and emerging smart technologies.
Working with a wide range of partners, Smart Oxford has a vision to bring together
innovative ideas and engaged stakeholders to build a better stronger, safer,
economically and environmentally sustainable city through smart solutions.
Addressing and reducing energy consumption is central to this vision, not just in
Oxford but county wide.

The need to make our assets more sustainable in future cities requires considerable
innovation at all levels from policy to deployment. Solutions need to have a strong
research element balanced with good commercial potential — Oxfordshire County
Council is well placed to support and facilitate solutions in close partnership with
established consortiums with universities and businesses.

The Energy Strategy directly supports this programme, setting out our approach to
managing and reducing the energy required for our street lighting, buildings (and
wider assets) and travel, and providing the framework within which to make use of
innovative new technologies to reduce energy use and emissions from our sites and
vehicles.

OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to R@fe A®ust 2016 Page 8 of 17



Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

4 Partnerships and Innovation

Whilst this energy strategy will focus on our own estate and operations, and
opportunities for cost reduction, it is acknowledged that the county council has a
much broader role in leadership and influence through its various functions and
services.

The Oxfordshire Partnership organisations share the county’s commitment to reduce
county-wide greenhouse gas emissions by 50% by 2030.

A recent report commissioned by the County Council and the Oxfordshire Local
Enterprise Partnership shows that meeting the countywide target whilst meeting the
needs of a growing population and economy will require sustained and active
implementation of measures to reduce emissions®.

Reducing the overall county emissions is outside the scope of this strategy, but
highlights the importance of continuing to work in partnership with others on the
transition to a low carbon economy. The Local Enterprise Partnership, Growth
Board, Oxfordshire Partnership and Low Carbon Oxford all have a role in
encouraging broader action.

OxFutures: working in partnership

The OxFutures programme, led by Oxford City Council,
Oxfordshire County Council and key delivery partner,
social enterprise, Low Carbon Hub, was funded by
Intelligent Energy Europe to deliver around £18 million
of investment into renewables and energy efficiency in
Oxfordshire by 2017.

The strongest element of the programme has been “community energy” —
renewables schemes developed by the community and funded by local
shareholders. In this model, the host organisation gets a discounted bill for
their green energy and “profits” are cycled back into further energy efficiency
and renewables projects.

The programme has had an impressive uptake with schools with 4000 panels
installed across 20 schools to date. Schools have been motivated as much by
the environmental and wider community benefits, as the cost savings and fully
managed programme on offer.

4 Oxfordshire greenhouse gas emissions, 2008 to 2030. Aether, March 2016

OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to 2(Rggeugnst 2016 Page 9 of 17



Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

5 The Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

This Energy Strategy sets out how we will manage our energy use to reduce
emissions and keep costs as low as possible across our estate and other activities
over the next five years compared against our 2014/15 baseline. It provides a
framework to:

e understand and address the energy implications of wider organisational change

e direct investment to reduce energy costs and generate income in times of change
e reduce risk by securing and diversifying our energy supplies

e develop our own estate and assets as an exemplar for energy efficiency

e deliver our public commitments to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and to limit
the impacts of a changing climate.

5.1 Objectives

We will follow the best practice principles set out in ISO 50001, the international
standard for Energy Management Systems, to embed an energy management
system across our everyday practices which will drive continual improvement to:

Obj 1. Keep annual energy costs across the corporate estate at or below 2014/15
levels (£7 million) through to 2020 by reducing energy use and purchasing
energy effectively;

Obj 2. Make use of renewable technologies where economically viable to reduce risk
of supply, reduce costs and generate income to partially offset remaining
costs.

Obj 3. Reduce greenhouse gas emissions from our buildings and activities by an
average of 3 per cent year on year, equivalent to 3,438 tonnes CO2e by 2020.

5.2 Scope

This strategy focuses on managing energy under the council’s direct financial control
— corporate building energy, street lighting, and travel (business mileage and fleet),
and therefore excludes schools. Our approach in each of these three areas is set out
in section 5.3 below. Section 5.3.4 sets out how the County Council will support
schools as bill payers to reduce their own costs.

(Reducing costs \

In the first step to reducing our energy costs, we have secured a new contract with LASER
Energy to operate to 2020.

LASER use their bulk buying power to secure gas and electricity supplies at competitive
prices. By changing how we buy these supplies through LASER — ‘purchasing within
supply period’ rather than ‘purchasing in advance’ — we expect to save on average
£100,000 pa over the course of the contract.

N\

J

OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to P@fe A ust 2016 Page 10 of 17



Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

5.3 Our approach

The Energy Strategy provides the framework to reduce costs and
emissions resulting from energy consumption in all areas across our
estate and activities.

We will deliver this strategy through a rolling Action Plan that sets out the projects
necessary to meet our carbon targets and cost objectives. In drawing up the Action
Plan we will be guided by the following principles:

i. We will work within the principles of the ISO 50001 Energy Management system
to embed energy management into our everyday business practices and drive
continual improvement;

ii. We will use the energy hierarchy to prioritise activities that save energy at the
lowest cost, as well as maximise opportunities for energy efficiency and the
generation of energy from renewable sources;

iii. We will fund activities through an invest to save approach - investing capital and
capital finance to save a larger amount of revenue in coming years - making use
of external funding where possible and advantageous;

iv. We will make use of our organisational scale to maximise the opportunities to
reduce costs both through the way we procure energy and how we pay bills;

v. We will ensure the whole life cycle energy impact of the activities we undertake
and of the products and services we purchase is taken into consideration within
our procurement processes;

vi. We will continue working with our current partners, and explore new
partnerships where there is a clear benefit to the council and the opportunity to
lever additional economic and community benefit.

vii. We will work with colleagues across the organisation to identify projects in our
three key areas of energy spend: street lighting; buildings and other assets; and
travel (see sections 5.3.1 to 5.3.3 below).

Projects in the annual Action Plan, including no and low cost actions and other
‘invest to save’ options, will enable us to reduce energy spend (or offset costs) and /
or reduce greenhouse gas emissions on a project by project and case by case basis.
Each economically viable project will be brought forward through the appropriate
financial and governance pathway.

OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to 2(Rggauggst 2016 Page 11 of 17



Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

Good Housekeeping

The energy hierarchy sets out a good housekeeping
approach to managing our energy:

1. Reduce the need for energy - a ‘no / low cost’ solution
with immediate returns. For example, a trial of ‘part night
lighting (turning off street lights when least needed)
helped reduce consumption. Use energy more

efficiently

2. Make the enerqgy we purchase go further. Replacing old
street lighting with low energy dimmable lights reduces
consumption and costs: a dimmed light reduces energy
use by around one third.

Use
3. Once we’ve optimised our energy use we can explore Renewable energy

opportunities to increase the proportion of our energy
supplied through renewable sources. This will help
reduce our greenhouse gas emissions, and offer an
opportunity to generate income.

OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to RafeB@ust 2016 Page 12 of 17




Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

5.3.1 Street lighting

Street lighting accounts for the greatest proportions of our annual energy spend and
emissions (42% and 60% respectively in 2014/15). As with many other council
assets, the number of street lights will increase as growth across the county is
realised.

The management of the number of street lights and their associated energy usage
will need to continue through policy and making use of the advancement of
technology.

The council is already investing in a small scale role out of LED technology and
implemented dimming practices but further investment and policy changes will be
needed to offset the impact of a larger number of Street lights across Oxfordshire
and expected energy price increases in the coming years.

A new street lighting policy will be taken to Cabinet in the autumn, setting out the
approach needed to address these challenges. A new maintenance contract will
then be let, potentially bringing cost saving opportunities. Opportunities to replace
existing lamps with newer lower energy usage ones will be investigated and a
business case for further replacement programmes assessed.

5.3.2 Buildings and assets

Where and how we work is changing. In the coming years we expect to occupy
fewer buildings and continue to move to agile working. Whilst both these steps will
lead to reduced building energy costs, there are further measures we can take to
reduce energy demand, improve our energy efficiency and realise further savings.

Set against the backdrop of asset rationalisation, we will maximise the
implementation of low or no cost measures, for example:

e embedding energy conservation in our daily activities through staff awareness
and behavioural change;

e actively monitoring our energy use to ensure we target and reduce waste;

e embedding energy efficiency measures into our existing building and
maintenance programmes;

e adopting a whole building approach to energy efficiency in our core offices.

We will also continue to explore opportunities (where the business case allows) to
make use of renewable energy and innovative new technologies, not only on our
buildings but also on our wider assets, to reduce costs and emissions and at the
same time improve our energy security.

ﬂeducing our energy use through changing behaviours m \

Switching off helped us reduce energy use in our offices by
almost 10% over the Christmas holidays in 2014.

Before the holiday we used an intranet headline to ask all
staff to remember to ‘switch off’ before leaving the office.

Information collected from our automatic meter readers for this period suggests that we
reduced the amount of energy used on Christmas day by 7% and by 3% on both Boxing

Q\y and New Year’s Day compared with the previous year. J
- - Page-81




Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

5.3.3 Travel

We have identified the potential for significant cost saving opportunities around
business travel which can be realised through no or low cost measures:

e Ongoing changes to where and how we work, for example introduction of new
improved video conferencing facilities and the implementation of the digitisation
programme, are expected to reduce the need to travel.

e Promoting and implementing existing travel policies will direct staff to consider
how they can undertake essential journeys to lessen and lighten the impact of
travel. For example, encouraging the use of pool cars in preference to private
vehicles will both increase the utilisation of the existing cars and reduce the cost
of business mileage.

¢ Introducing training for high mileage users to improve fuel efficiency.
The energy strategy will both facilitate and monitor these changes.

Further opportunities to reduce the impact of business travel (both cost and
emissions) will be explored through the wider organisation. This will focus not only
on reducing business miles but on how we procure and manage our vehicles to take
advantage of bulk buying power to reduce fuel and maintenance costs.

(Our Officers’ Code of Conduct requires that all staff \

“consider sustainability issues when undertaking your duties, including the procurement
of goods and services. In particular you should seek opportunities to improve and
promote energy conservation, advocate recycling and waste minimisation, reduce

pollution and support positive Council initiatives to improve the environment. You should
limit travel on Council business to that which is unavoidable and walk, cycle or use

public transport if possible”.

\ J

OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to P@fe BRust 2016 Page 14 of 17



Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

5.3.4 Schools

In 2014/15 maintained schools in Oxfordshire spent £3.3 million on energy bills and
a further £140,000 on business travel. This is one third of the total OCC energy
spend and equated to 15,230 tonnes CO, equivalent, 36% of the council’s total
emissions.

Whilst the Council’s target to reduce emissions by 3% year on year also applies
across the schools estate, it is recognised that the Council has increasingly limited
influence on how these buildings are operated:

e the majority of our secondary schools have already converted to academy status,
operating entirely independently;

e we anticipate that significant numbers of those remaining under local authority
control at present will become academies over the life time of this strategy;

e any remaining maintained schools are considered to be separate bill payers and
decision-makers in reducing their own costs.

Working within the limited resources available, we will however continue to offer the
following services to support the remaining maintained schools to reduce their
energy costs:

¢ Include these schools in the energy bulk buying contract through Laser

e Provide a billing verification service through our property partner Carillion

e Signpost schools to the financial opportunities available through Salix Finance
Limited to fund energy efficiency investments

e Signpost to opportunities available through other organisations such as the
Low Carbon Hub.

e Support innovative energy reduction / renewable programmes to schools
where these can be delivered at no cost or on a cost-recovery basis.

Acknowledging the diminishing influence of the County in the schools estate, we will

remove academy emissions from our Greenhouse Gas reporting. We will also report
on emissions from maintained schools and corporate estate separately.

OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to 2(Rggeug8st 2016 Page 15 of 17



Oxfordshire County Council Energy Strategy, 2015 to 2020

5.4 Governance and review

The sponsor of this energy strategy and the associated delivery plan is the County
Council Management Team (CCMT) reflecting the cross-organisational nature of the
costs.

The Energy Strategy team will report annually to CCMT on progress against the
Action Plan (to coincide with collation of year-end greenhouse gas and cost data).
At the same time we will update the Action Plan, identifying projects for the following
year to ensure we continue to meet our objectives to reduce costs and emissions.
Projects will be fed into the Council’s service and resource planning process.

The Energy Strategy will be reviewed in 2020.

OCC Energy Strategy 2015 to P@fe Bhust 2016 Page 16 of 17



Proposed Energy Management System

The international standard for Energy management systems (EnMS), ISO 50001 sets out a systematic approach to energy management. In common with other
management standards the approach aims to deliver continuous improvements driven by a plan-do-check-act cycle.

The process requires the organisation to adopt an energy policy which is widely communicated and shared. A review of energy performance sets a baseline, identifies
significant areas of energy use and leads to meaningful and realistic objectives and targets — and an action plan setting out the activities needed to meet these. The
action plan is reviewed and reported at determined intervals, and a management review is required to drive continuous improvement of the system. The process diagram
below shows the steps of the EnMS adapted from ISO 50001 (grey boxes), with the additional detail on planning and project s (coloured boxes).

Continual
Improvement of
process

Management review

(Annual energy review
and updated action plan
to CCMT and Cabinet)

Gg abed

Annual energy review
Assess actual vs planned
savings / lessons*

Savings or pressures from:

e  Energy reduction activity,

e Change in asset base

e Changes in gov policy to the non-
commodity element bills

considered in the council’s medium

term olan.

Calculate required savings
budget in kWh and Carbon
to meet taraets

Services propose
savings opportunities
and projects

Select and agree projects,
identifying necessary funding

£\ v

*Delivery of the strategy will be assessed against
the following key success factors:

Energy Costs kept to 2014/15 levels
Affordable

Value for Money

Renewable Energy Technology

Reduced greenhouse gas emissions (3% pa)

Economically viable projects
submitted through the
Commercial Services Board or
Capital Asset Programme
Board

Buiuueld 921n0SaI pue 99IAI8S

I
|
|
e _7
I | Review overall I
| I energy 1
Energy Strategy | . performance |
I JEE W EEN O BN O S O . w \
|
|
Energy planning :
|
|
|
T 1
Implementation & 11 . .
Operation (7| ] Deliver selected projects 16—
________ wl
|
|
|
|
|
Checking Monitoring,
Measurement &
Analysis

Corrective and
preventive action




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



	Agenda
	4 Proposed Toucan Crossing - A423 Southam Road, Banbury
	5 Proposed Controlled Parking Zone -  Lye Valley Area, Headington, Oxford
	6 Proposed Puffin Crossing - Cumnor Hill, Cumnor
	7 Proposed 20mph Speed Limit - Brightwell-cum-Sotwell Village
	8 Proposed Traffic Calming Amendments - Woodstock Road, Stonesfield
	9 Proposed 30mph Speed Limit Extension - A361 Burford Road, Chipping Norton
	10 Oxfordshire County Council Internal Energy Management Strategy  2015 - 2020
	CMDE_OCT1316R10.doc


